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Introduction to the City of Swan
Who are we?
The City of Swan is geographically the
largest local government in the Perth
Metropolitan area, encompassing 1,043
square kilometres of land and serving
more than 100,000 residents. The Shire of
Swan was formed in 1970 and since then
has developed into a City that is one of the
most highly respected local governments
in the State.
The City’s boundaries extend from
Gidgegannup in the east to Ballajura
in the west and from Bullsbrook in the
north to Perth Airport in the south. Within
its boundaries the City of Swan has two
regional centres, several national parks and
reserves, major industrial areas, historically
important townsites, rural areas and
fast-growing residential areas. This huge
area comprises 40 suburbs of very diverse
nature. The City has its administration
centre located in Midland which is one of
eight designated strategic regional centres
within the Perth metropolitan area.
Where are we going?
The vision for our City is that it is ‘a place
to come and live
 6eaVXZi]ViZc]VcXZhXdbbjc^in
lifestyle
 6eaVXZi]Vi^hegd\gZhh^kZVcY[jaad[
opportunity
 6eaVXZi]Vi^hk^WgVciVcYd[[Zgh
diversity
Our organisation’s long term goal
is conveyed through this vision – an
innovative organisation of highly
skilled people providing valued services
that enhance the quality of life of our
communities.
The mission deﬁnes the purpose of our
organisation, giving meaning to why we
are in business and what our role is in the
community.
Our mission is to enhance our community’s
image, lifestyle and environment
through effective leadership, community
involvement and commitment to service.

Our corporate values
Leadership: providing clear direction
and inspiring people to reach their full
potential.
Openness: promoting an open and trusting
environment.
Respect: valuing and acknowledging
everyone’s contribution.
Excellence: developing and utilising
our knowledge and skills to promote
an innovative and competitive work
environment.
Our corporate goals
The City’s Strategic Corporate Plan outlines
the following Key Result Areas (KRA) for
the City:
 @G6&·AZVY^c\i]Z8^ind[HlVc·
how the City will provide leadership
and governance within our community.
 @G6'·9ZkZade^c\i]Z8^ind[HlVc·
relates to the development of physical
infrastructure, land, business locations
and community places.
 @G6(·:c]VcX^c\Xdbbjc^inlZaa"
being – what the City does that relates
to social and community development,
personal well-being, culture, health,
safety, leisure and lifelong learning.
 @G6)·KVaj^c\djgcVijgVa
environment – what the City of Swan
does that relates to the protection
and enhancement of our natural
environment.
 @G6*·BVcV\^c\i]Zdg\Vc^hVi^dc·
internal support and management for
within the organisation that enables
products and services to be delivered
to the community and meet the City’s
objectives.
This report outlines the City’s achievements
according to these key areas.

Five Year Key Summary of Statistics
2002/03

2003/04

2004/05

2005/06

2006/07

Total number of residents

87,425

91,354

92,969

96,293

99,896

Total number of rateable properties

35,916

37,028

37,684

39,270

40,726

$465

$485

$500

$520

$572

Rates levied (excluding refuse)

$32.43m

$34.58m

$37.5m

$40.5m

$45.6m

Operating revenue

$54.8m

$57.96m

$59.36m

$67.47m

$77.0m

Total current assets

$14.3m

$14.7m

$19.5m

$25.6m

$30.8m

Capital grants revenue

$2.46m

$2.70m

$2.85m

$5.70m

$3.4m

Operating grants revenue

$4.95m

$5.37m

$5.98m

$5.59m

$6.7m

9ZWiHZgk^X^c\GVi^d

(#.%

(#(%

'#,%

'#(%

&#-&

Full time equivalent staff

439

452

460

464

475

Planning applications received

832

757

1,079

1,262

1448
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Building applications received

3,297

3,635

3,879

4,261

4,138

Licensed dogs registered

4,139

5,463

5,091

6,356

6,799

Garbage services provided

34,405

35,132

36,114

36,817

38,143

Recycling services provided

32,354

33,031

33,966

33,340

34,549

Swan Park Leisure Centre attendance

305,809

248,972

302,000

289,979

282,667

Altone Park Leisure Centre attendance

318,190

291,435

308,000

325,237

315,938

Ballajura Leisure Centre attendance

139,625

120,539

133,000

125,564

132,103

Active registered library borrowers

47,206

48,249

44,168

46,554

40,458

Library loans of books and other items

841,291

809,509

803,366

767,333

823,583

Minimum general residential rate

largest metropolitan local
government in Perth, the City of Swan
is one of the most diverse local
governments in Western Australia”
“As the

Cr CM Gregorini OAM JP
Mayor
City of Swan

CONTENTS

MAYOR’S MESSAGE ................................ 06
CEO’S MESSAGE ..................................... 07
PHYSICAL INFRASTRUCTURE ................... 09
ELECTED REPRESENTATIVES..................... 10
ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE ............... 12
KEY RESULT AREA 1
LEADING THE CITY OF SWAN .................. 14
KEY RESULT AREA 2
DEVELOPING THE CITY OF SWAN ............ 20
KEY RESULT AREA 3
ENHANCING COMMUNITY
WELL-BEING ........................................... 32
KEY RESULT AREA 4
VALUING OUR NATURAL
ENVIRONMENT....................................... 42
KEY RESULT AREA 5
MANAGING THE ORGANISATION ............ 46
FINANCIAL REPORT ................................ 52

Mayor and CEO’s Message

Key result area 01 Leading the City of Swan
The past ﬁnancial year has been a
signiﬁcant one for the City of Swan, as we
prepare for unprecedented urban growth
in our community during the next ten to
ﬁfteen years.
As the largest metropolitan local
government in Perth, the City of Swan is
one of the most diverse local governments
in Western Australia. Encompassing 1,043
square kilometres, the City includes
industrial centres, local commercial hubs,
regional commercial centres, agricultural
areas, new and established suburbs,
heritage precincts and a large amount of
land set aside for urban growth.
So how do we plan to meet the needs of
our existing community while the City’s
population is expected to swell from
100,000 to nearly 150,000 by 2021.
This challenge has taken much of the City’s
focus during 2006/07. To begin with, the
City established a $2 million infrastructure
replacement fund, which will go some way
toward replacing the City’s ageing assets in
the years to come.
Much of the City’s infrastructure is 30years-old or more, and will require
signiﬁcant upgrades in the coming years. It
is projected that within 20 years, the City
will need to spend close to $20 million
on refurbishing ageing community halls,
pavilions, swimming pools and other
community facilities alone. This makes
the Infrastructure Replacement Fund an
essential part of the City’s ﬁnancial and
asset planning.
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Place planning and place management
have also been important to the City in
2006/07, with the establishment of two
more place managers in Ellenbrook and
Midland, and the continuation of place
planning, in particular with the Bullsbrook
Place Plan.
Place Planning enables the City to plan,
design and deliver projects and services
that are tailored to meet the needs
of people living in different areas, by
involving them and giving them a greater
say. Meanwhile, Place Management looks
closely at these places to plan, coordinate
and deliver projects and services tailored to
the individual community.
Both are important programs that improve
the way the City of Swan works with the
community to meet their needs and build
vibrant, sustainable communities.
Overall 2006/07 has been a positive and
constructive year and I would like to thank
Councillors and staff for their enthusiasm
and dedication. The City and Council look
forward to building on their successes in
2007/08.

Cr CM Gregorini OAM JP
Mayor
City of Swan

The rapid growth experienced by the
City of Swan in 2005/06 was continued
in 2006/07 with the City’s population
cresting 100,000. What’s more, there are
no signs of slowing down for many years
to come.
This sharp population increase is due
not only to the signiﬁcant urban growth
planned for the City of Swan between
Caversham and Ellenbrook, but also a
remarkable amount of inﬁll development
across the City.
This growth has prompted the provision
of new services in our urban growth areas
such as Ellenbrook – and in March 2007
the City of Swan was very excited to open
the Ellenbrook Community Library. This
library is an innovative facility shared by
the Ellenbrook Secondary College and
the wider community. It was designed to
be a focal point for the community, with
meeting rooms for community groups,
space for the City’s place management
ofﬁcers and access to life-long learning for
the whole community.
However, providing new facilities is only
one aspect to the rate of growth in the City.
In 2006/07 the City concentrated on longterm planning for all areas – in furthering
the City’s place planning process, planning
for the City’s valuable environmental
resources, ﬁnancial planning and
continuing the City’s asset management
plans.

One area in which the City’s service levels
showed improvement, and which will
also support our rapid growth, is in the
development of an electronic lodgement
system – known as els – for building licence
Veea^XVi^dch#9jg^c\'%%,i]Z8^inVcYV
consortium of government and industry
representatives trialled this new system
with very promising results. els will result
in faster turnaround times for applications,
increased certainty for builders and a more
streamlined process for everyone involved.
Internally, the City of Swan faced many
challenges in 2006/07. A high turnover of
staff during the ﬁnancial year has placed
pressure on the City to remain competitive
with other employers while continuing
to maintain our service levels in the
community.
As CEO, I am particularly thankful for the
support of the City Councillors and the
hard work and dedication of City staff
members. Together, we are committed to
providing the best quality of life for the
City’s residents and ratepayers today and in
the future. I look forward to the challenges
2007/08 will bring.

MJ Foley
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
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Ordinary meetings

Special meetings

Maximum possible
number of meetings
attended

Actual number of
meetings attended

Maximum possible
number of meetings
attended

Actual number of
meetings attended

Cr F Alban

18

17

2

2

Cr K Bailey

18

17

2

2

Cr M Congerton

18

16

2

2

Cr S Croy

18

16

2

2

8g9;VgY^\

18

15

2

2

Cr C Gregorini

18

17

2

2

Cr M Haynes

18

14

2

1

Cr J Holmes

18

16

2

2

Cr T Jones

18

17

2

2

8g9AjXVh

18

16

2

1

Cr J Marino

18

18

2

2

Cr J McNamara

18

15

2

2

Cr M Wainwright

18

16

2

2

Cr C Zannino

18

18

2

2
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PHYSICAL INFRASTRUCTURE MAP OF THE CITY OF SWAN
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Key result area 01 Leading the City of Swan
There are 14 Councillors elected by the
public to represent them and govern the
City of Swan. Councillors then vote to
Veed^ciVBVndgVcY9ZejinBVndg#
The City is divided into eight groupings
of suburbs called Wards. Each Councillor
represents a speciﬁc Ward but governs for
the entire City.
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Altone Ward
CR DAVID FARDIG
Term ends: 2009
First elected: 1992 re-elected through to
present
Portfolio: Physical and Economic
9ZkZadebZci0EgdiZXi^dcVcY:c]VcXZbZci
"CVijgVa:ck^gdcbZci0>ciZgcVaHjeedgi
and Management Services

Ballajura Ward
CR MEL CONGERTON
9ZejinBVndg[gdbBVn'%%*idegZhZci
Term ends: 2007
First elected: 1999 re-elected through to
present
Edgi[da^d/AZVYZgh]^eVcY<dkZgcVcXZ0
E]nh^XVaVcY:Xdcdb^X9ZkZadebZci0
8dbbjc^inVcYHdX^Va9ZkZadebZci0
Protection and Enhancement - Natural
Environment

Altone Ward
CR DAVID LUCAS
Term ends: 2007
First elected: 1992 re-elected through to
present
Portfolio: Community and Social
9ZkZadebZci

Ballajura Ward
CR MARIA HAYNES
9ZejinBVndgjci^aBVn'%%*
Term ends: 2007
First elected: 1989 re-elected through to
present
Edgi[da^d/AZVYZgh]^eVcY<dkZgcVcXZ0
8dbbjc^inVcYHdX^Va9ZkZadebZci0
Internal Support and Management Services

Altone Ward
CR MICK WAINWRIGHT
Term ends: 2009
First elected: May 2005
Portfolio: Physical and Economic
9ZkZadebZci08dbbjc^inVcYHdX^Va
9ZkZadebZci

Ballajura Ward
CR JOHN McNAMARA
Term ends: 2009
First elected: 1997 re-elected through to
present.
Portfolio: Leadership and Governance,
8dbbjc^inVcYHdX^Va9ZkZadebZci!
Internal Support and Management Services

Ellenbrook Ward
CR TODD JONES
Term ends: 2007
First elected: 2003
Portfolio: Protection and Enhancement Natural Environment, Internal Support and
Management Services

Midland Ward
CR CHARLIE GREGORINI
Mayor
Term ends: 2007
First elected: 1977 re-elected through to
present
Portfolio: Leadership and Governance

North Ward
CR KEVIN BAILEY
Term ends: 2009
First elected: May 2005
Portfolio: Not appointed

Gidgegannup Ward
CR STEVE CROY
Term ends: 2009
First elected: June 2004
Edgi[da^d/AZVYZgh]^eVcY<dkZgcVcXZ0
E]nh^XVaVcY:Xdcdb^X9ZkZadebZci
Protection and Enhancement - Natural
Environment

Midland Ward
CR JON HOLMES
Term ends: 2007
First elected: 2003
Portfolio: Physical and Economic
9ZkZadebZci0EgdiZXi^dcVcY:c]VcXZbZci
- Natural Environment

Swan Valley Ward
CR CHARLIE ZANNINO
Term ends: 2007
First elected: 1987 to 1993. Elected again
in 1999 through to present
Portfolio: Leadership and Governance,
Protection and Enhancement - Natural
Environment

Guildford Ward
CR FRANK ALBAN
Term ends: 2009
First elected: August 2003
Portfolio: Physical and Economic
9ZkZadebZci

Midland Ward
CR JOE MARINO
Term ends: 2009
First elected: 1997 to 1999. Elected again
2001 to present.
Portfolio: Leadership and Governance,
Internal Support and Management Services
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

MAYOR & COUNCILLORS
COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE PROJECT OFFICER
Max Hunt
MANAGER COUNCIL SUPPORT
Helen Harrison

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Michael Foley

INTERNAL AUDIT
Abbie Liew

EXECUTIVE MANAGER
CORPORATE SERVICES
Colin Cameron

EXECUTIVE MANAGER CUSTOMER
& COMMUNITY SERVICES
Maureena Lockyer-Benzie

MANAGER
FINANCIAL SERVICES & RATES
Adnana Arapovic

MANAGER LIBRARY SERVICES
Sheena Joyce

MANAGER
CONTRACTS & PROCUREMENT
Bill Byrne

MANAGER CUSTOMER SERVICES
Kerry Toop

MANAGER
INFORMATION SERVICES
Jim Kuan (Acting)

MANAGER COMMUNITY SERVICES
Ged Hines

MANAGER HUMAN RESOURCES
Wayne Sissing

MANAGER LEISURE SERVICES
Steven Marrs

MANAGER PLACES &
COMMUNITY SAFETY
Jeremy Edwards
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EXECUTIVE MANAGER STRATEGIC
COMMUNITY PLANNING
Scott Hollingworth

EXECUTIVE MANAGER
OPERATIONAL & DEVELOPMENT
SERVICES
Jim Coten

MANAGER COMMUNITY
PLANNING
Roge Kemp

MANAGER OPERATIONS
Ian Lynch

MANAGER ORGANISATIONAL
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
Fiona Weigall

MANAGER DEPOT & WASTE
SERVICES
Colin Pumphrey

MANAGER STRATEGIC PROJECTS
Paul Hackett

MANAGER ENVIRONMENTAL
HEALTH
Mark Bishop

MANAGER COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT
Linda Richardson

MANAGER BUILDING SERVICES
Richard Olsen

MANAGER ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT
John Rogers (Acting)

MANAGER TOWN PLANNING
Steven Tan

MANAGER ASSET MANAGEMENT
>Vc9Zccn

MANAGER PROJECT
MANAGEMENT
Craig McLennan

MANAGER FACILITIES
MANAGEMENT
Mark Spendlove
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KEY RESULT AREA 1

Leading

the

City

of

Swan

This area looks at how the City has
complied with statutory requirements,
managed
the
City’s
resources
in a sustainable way to achieve
community
outcomes,
increased
community involvement in planning
and decision making and developed
partnerships
with
government,
private and not-for-proﬁt sectors.

KEY RESULT AREA 1

Key result area 01 Leading the City of Swan
This area looks at how the City has
complied with statutory requirements,
managed the City’s resources in a
sustainable way to achieve community
outcomes, increased community
involvement in planning and decision
making and developed partnerships with
government, private and not-for-proﬁt
sectors.
Local Government is the sphere of
government that is closest to and most
inﬂuenced by the community. To effectively
and efﬁciently govern, the City must plan
for and manage its assets and resources,
deliver appropriate services, ensure State
and Federal laws are complied with and
develop opportunities for its residents and
ratepayers to enjoy a high-quality standard
of living.
The City’s resources
The City’s resources are managed in a
sustainable and responsible way leading
to the best possible outcomes for the
community. In the 2006/07 ﬁnancial year,
the City operated with a $72.3 million
operating budget and a $31 million capital
works budget.
In the 2006/07 ﬁnancial year the City
employed more than 670 staff (including
all part-time, full-time and casual staff
members). The hours worked by these
staff translated to approximately 475 full
time equivalent staff.
Statutory requirements
Statutory compliance is regarded very
highly at the City of Swan. The Local
Government Act requires each Council
to certify that it has complied with a
number of legislative provisions and advise
i]Z9ZeVgibZcid[AdXVa<dkZgcbZci
accordingly.
The other principal statutory compliance
requirement relates to the completion
of the audit of the ﬁnancial statements
and the City is pleased to advise that an
unqualiﬁed audit report has been received
from the City auditors. A copy of the audit
report is contained in the ﬁnancial section
of this report.
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Informing the community
Informing the community and staff of the
City’s decisions, achievements, goals and
services is an important part of the City’s
role.
To this end, the City has developed an
efﬁcient corporate communications process,
including extensive use of the local media,
with more than 350 media releases and
responses supplied during 2006/07.
Other essential and well-received
communications include the production
of the City’s place newsletters (which
are distributed directly to residents’
letterboxes), along with an extensive range
of booklets, brochures and posters.
The City’s website this year included
a weekly update from the CEO to give
residents an insight into the day-to-day
running of the City. Plans are underway
to revitalise the City’s website during
2007/08.
Also in 2006/07 the City produced its
popular 13-month pictorial calendar that
was distributed to every household and
business within the City of Swan. The
pictorial calendar contains important
information such as dates for community
events, rubbish collection, community
safety messages and other City services.
The City’s ﬁnancial position and
commitments were also communicated to
the community via the statutory annual
report.
The City of Swan endeavours to keep the
community well informed about individual
projects with extensive community
consultation and workshops, particularly
for the place planning process. Information
about community consultations and
workshops can be found in a central
location on the City’s website.

Customer service call centre
The City’s Customer Service Call Centre
plays an important role as the ﬁrst point
of contact for many community members.
As well as answering questions call centre
staff also help direct members of the public
to the right person within the organisation
to help them with their issues.

Swan River Trust
The City of Swan signed a landmark
partnership agreement with the Swan
River Trust in July 2006. The ﬁrst of its
kind between a local government and the
Swan River Trust, the agreement focuses
primarily on the health of the Swan and
Helena rivers.

In 2006/07 the City’s customer services
area helped 211,205 people, including
169,848 calls to the City’s call centre and
41,357 front desk visitors.

Signiﬁcant work on the development of a
restoration plan for the Blackadder Creek
and associated wetlands was achieved as a
direct result of the partnership agreement.

Developing partnerships
Civic Engagement and Partnerships
In recognition of the beneﬁts that come
from a collaborative approach, the City
has also recently created a speciﬁc role
to manage partnerships and community
engagement. This role will speciﬁcally
focus on developing a range of tools
and mechanisms for the organisation to
effectively work with the community and
keep community members informed and
involved in the City’s decision-making
processes. The focus on partnerships will
aid the City to more effectively meet
community needs by creatively joining
with other organisations and groups to
pool resources ensuring that we deliver
quality outcomes for our community.

Swan Regional Riverside Park
The City of Swan signed an addendum in
March 2007 to an agreement (originally
signed in 2006) with the Midland
Redevelopment Authority regarding the
Swan Regional Riverside Park (SRRP),
which aims to develop a feasibility study
and business case for an SRRP indigenous
interpretive centre and tourism facility.

Partnerships established and continued by
the City in 2006/07 include:
WWF Australia
The City has prepared a Partnership
Agreement with WWF-Australia with a
view to progressing the development of a
private landholder incentives strategy for
the City.
This follows the publication of the City’s
Local Biodiversity Strategy in 2005,
which highlighted the need to develop
a private landholder incentives strategy
that will contribute to the conservation
of biodiversity on private property. The
agreement will be signed and work
undertaken in the next ﬁnancial year.

Midland Redevelopment Authority
The City continued its work with the
Midland Redevelopment Authority (MRA)
to revitalise the Midland Town Centre in
many areas.
The City has been working together with
MRA on the review of the 1997 Charrette,
which was a landmark strategic planning
exercise for the Midland Regional Centre
and immediate surrounds. Given the
revitalisation which has been occurring
over that time in Midland, it is prudent to
review the past decade and look forward
to Midland’s future.
The City also entered into a joint venture
to provide and trial new generation self
cleaning universal access toilet facilities in
the central Midland Area.
Midland Reference Group
In 2005/06, the City and the MRA formed
an innovative community consultation
group to provide strategic advice on
Midland’s revitalisation. The Midland
Reference Group is made up of local
community and business representatives.
This group participated in the Midland
;gZ^\]iGV^aGZVa^\cbZci9ZÄc^i^dcHijYn
which was coordinated in partnership
l^i]i]Z9ZeVgibZci[dgEaVcc^c\VcY
Infrastructure in July 2006.
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KEY RESULT AREA 1
Transit-oriented development
The City of Swan signed a memorandum
of understanding in April 2007 with the
B^c^hiZg[dgEaVcc^c\>c[gVhigjXijgZ!
Western Australian Planning Commission
(WAPC), Town of Bassendean and the City
of Bayswater for the purpose of facilitating
a comprehensive planning study of the
Maylands to Guildford section of the Perth
to Midland activity corridor.
Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council
Throughout 2006/07 the City continued its
partnership with the Eastern Metropolitan
Regional Council (EMRC) which comprises
the municipalities of Bassendean,
Bayswater, Belmont, Kalamunda,
Mundaring and Swan. Examples of the
partnership include participation in the
Perth Metropolitan bid for the Solar Cities
Project.
The City has continued to support the
EMRC’s Resource Recovery Project, a waste
management project, while developing
solutions to the problems of wood waste
in our industrial areas was another focus
of the EMRC partnership. In working with
other stakeholders, tangible solutions to
this issue are now emerging.
The City’s collaboration with the EMRC
in tourism was also evident thanks to
collaboration at the Caravan and Camping
Show and WA on Show along with regular
idjg^hbbZZi^c\hi]gdj\]i]ZHlVcKVaaZn
VcY:VhiZgcGZ\^dcK^h^idg8ZcigZ6Yk^hdgn
7dVgY!K^h^idg8ZcigZ6Yk^hdgn<gdje!
Regional Cycling project meetings and the
GZ\^dcVa:Xdcdb^X9ZkZadebZciD[ÄXZg¼h
Group.
Swan Valley and Eastern Region Visitor
Centre Advisory Board
In the 2006/07 ﬁnancial year the Swan
KVaaZnVcY:VhiZgcGZ\^dcK^h^idg8ZcigZ
continue to meet bi-monthly to give
higViZ\^XY^gZXi^dcidi]ZHlVcKVaaZnVcY
:VhiZgcGZ\^dcK^h^idg8ZcigZ#I]ZWdVgY
consisted of representation from the
following: City of Swan Councillors, Swan
KVaaZn;ddY<gdje!HlVcKVaaZnIdjg^hb
8djcX^a!HlVcKVaaZn<gVeZ<gdlZgh
6hhdX^Vi^dc!HlVcKVaaZn6XXdbbdYVi^dc
Network, Swan Guildford Historical
HdX^Zin!HlVcKVaaZnGZ\^dcVaL^cZ
Makers Association, Eastern Metropolitan
Regional Council, North East Metropolitan

18 | Annual report 2006 – 2007

Chamber of Commerce, Experience
<^Y\Z\Vccje!HlVcKVaaZn6gihVcY8jaijgZ
Representative and City of Swan staff
members.
Midland Tertiary Education
In a bid to bring more tertiary education
opportunities to its residents, the
City of Swan continued to work in
partnership with universities, the Midland
Redevelopment Authority, Swan TAFE,
local businesses and community groups
throughout 2006/07 to develop and back
a business plan for expansion of tertiary
services in the area and the relocation of
Governor Stirling Senior High School.
Collectively Marketing the Swan Valley
Following great success with the Swan
KVaaZnBVg`Zi^c\<gdje^c'%%*$%+!i]Z
City of Swan worked with stakeholders
in 2006/07 on phase three of the Swan
KVaaZnBVg`Zi^c\8VbeV^\cidegdbdiZ
i]ZHlVcKVaaZnVhVidjg^hiYZhi^cVi^dc#
More than 100 stakeholders, or 80 per cent
d[HlVcKVaaZnWjh^cZhhZh!Xdcig^WjiZY
ﬁnancially to the campaign worth around
$85,000.
Malaga Crime Management Forum
I]Z8^ind[HlVc!BVaV\V9^hig^Xih
Business Association and Ballajura
Police have formed the Malaga Crime
Management Forum. The forum aims
to deliver a range of crime prevention
activities in the Malaga industrial area. A
grant of $104,000 was received from the
;ZYZgVa6iidgcZn<ZcZgVa¼h9ZeVgibZci[dg
a program of crime prevention initiatives to
be implemented in the Malaga Industrial
area.
Small Business Centre Stirling MOU
The City of Swan and the Small Business
Centre Stirling (SBCS) continued their
ongoing work aimed at delivering a range
of business development services and
business training in the Ballajura and
Altone Wards. The agreement ensures the
City and the SBCS’s services complement
each other and address the many different
needs of the business community in these
areas.

Partnerships beneﬁt local arts
Kulcha Multicultural Arts and the City
co-presented the Kulcha on Swan series
of free outdoor community concerts in
2006/07, with concerts held across the
City.
The City of Swan and local businesses
continued their work with the Australia
Business Arts Foundation’s Arts Connecting
Communities program. The program aims
to foster, facilitate and sustain partnerships
between local arts organisations and local
businesses, to the beneﬁt of the whole
community.
Department for Education and Training
As part of the City of Swan’s work
to improve community facilities for
Ellenbrook’s growing community, the
City continued to work closely with the
9ZeVgibZci[dg:YjXVi^dcVcYIgV^c^c\
9:I#>cBVgX]'%%,!i]Z:aaZcWgdd`
Community Resource Centre, including the
Ellenbrook Community Library, was opened
for school and community use.
BZVcl]^aZVcdi]ZgBdJl^i]i]Z9:I!i]^h
i^bZXdcXZgc^c\i]Z7jaahWgdd`9^hig^Xi
High School redevelopment, continued in
2006/07. The agreement will ensure the
school and community library will nurture a
closer relationship with the community and
link the planning of the school with the
broader planning for Bullsbrook.
District Community Safety Plan
Working closely with the shires of
Mundaring and Kalamunda, the Town of
Bassendean and the State Government
Ofﬁce of Crime Prevention, the City of
Swan is facilitating the establishment of a
district-wide Community Safety and Crime
Prevention Plan.
A consultant was appointed and a ﬁnal
plan is being considered and reviewed by
all stakeholders. This plan will serve as
a platform for the City and neighbouring
local authorities to assist in community
safety and crime prevention strategies.

Noise Impacts on the Community
In response to the signiﬁcant impacts
of noise on the community, the City
maintains an operational ‘Memorandum of
Understanding’ with the Police to manage
after-hours noise complaints, with the
City providing administrative support to
the police in taking legal action against
offenders.
Pollution Impacts on the Community
The City maintains an operational
V\gZZbZcil^i]i]Z9ZeVgibZcid[
Environment and Conservation in
responding to community complaints
regarding pollution impacts. This
agreement seeks to clarify roles and assist
in providing a rapid response to issues
raised by the community.
Club development
The City of Swan partnered with the City
d[7VnhlViZgVcYi]Z9ZeVgibZcid[Hedgi
and Recreation in 2006/07 to provide a full
i^bZ8ajW9ZkZadebZciD[ÄXZg89D#I]Z
eg^bVg^angdaZd[i]Z89D^hidVhh^hiXajWh$
sporting ofﬁcials/educators in developing
their respective clubs, from improving
resources and facilities to providing training
and educational opportunities for club
ofﬁcials and members.
Inclusive sport and recreation
Working closely with the WA Local
Government Association and disability
service organisations such as the Centre
[dg8ZgZWgVaEVahn!L69^hVWaZYHedgih
Association and Recreation and Sports
Network, the City is developing inclusive
sport and recreation opportunities for
people with disabilities.
This approach is seen as a positive step,
which will beneﬁt everyone in the City
of Swan by promoting and strengthening
community inclusive initiatives.
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Developing the City of Swan
In this section the achievements of the
City in terms of developing the physical
infrastructure, land, business locations
and community places are outlined.
Speciﬁcally we are reporting on how we
have planned for future communities,
facilities and infrastructure, building
and maintaining infrastructure, facilities
and public spaces and managing
community assets. Our efforts in making
the area appealing to investors through
the establishment of programs and
policies are also encompassed here.
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Key result area 01 Leading the City of Swan
In this section the achievements of the
City in terms of developing the physical
infrastructure, land, business locations and
community places are outlined. Speciﬁcally
we are reporting on how we have planned
for future communities, facilities and
infrastructure, building and maintaining
infrastructure, facilities and public spaces
and managing community assets. Our
efforts in making the area appealing
to investors through the establishment
of programs and policies are also
encompassed here.
Leading and governing the area and its
residents is a substantial task and the
City of Swan needs to develop to ensure
residents, ratepayers, investors and visitors
have adequate infrastructure and facilities
to work, live and recreate. To this end,
planning, developing and maintaining
everything from new residential and
commercial locations, public open spaces
and roads is one of the most important
tasks undertaken by the City of Swan.
Asset management
The City controls $914 million in assets
(current replacement value) ranging from
roads, to buildings and car parks. One of
the City’s key roles is to deliver services
within the community through effective
management of these assets.
Thirteen Asset Management Plans have
been prepared for the principal asset
groups, to better manage maintenance,
renewal and capital replacement in each of
these groups.
Facility management
Facility management is a detailed subset
of asset management focusing on the
maintenance, compliance, safety and
effective management of the City’s
facilities. Through effective planning
and management, the cost of operating
facilities (including the provision of
building-related services) can be
minimised or in some cases reduced,
while maintaining the buildings to a high
standard. This ensures a sustainable future
for the facilities and improved services for
the community.
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Service provision
Cleaning, ﬁre protection services and
preventative mechanical services were
high on the agenda in 2006/7 and have
been undertaken on and in the majority of
City buildings. More than $2.5 million was
allocated to this area to undertake work in
each ward.
Strategic Alliance
Facilities Management strengthened its
alliances with Strategic Planning Services
in areas of mutual interest and beneﬁt. It is
anticipated that the standards of facilities
will improve progressively over future
years.
Security
Improvements in building security and
asset protection were initiated in readiness
for a more proactive approach and defence
against vandalism and grafﬁti in 2007/08
as Building Facility Management prepared
to take control of grafﬁti removal services.
Energy efﬁciency
New initiatives in building management,
energy reduction and efﬁciency have been
started in 2006/07 which will progressively
place the City in a leading role in building
automation and energy efﬁciency. The City
invested $48,000 for speciﬁc infrastructure
aimed at this task. Greater emphasis on
this vital area of sustainability is planned
by Building Facilities Management in
2007/08.

Planning for the future
The City of Swan has a community plan
which provides a framework for setting
priorities and allocating resources over the
next decade for its nearly 100 different
services.

It is anticipated that the matter will
be resolved in the near future so that
current proposed structure plans for the
City’s Growth Corridor can be progressed
accordingly.

The plan will help direct resources to where
they are most needed and recognises the
City’s leadership role and responsibility to
act as community advocates.

Ellenbrook Leisure and Lifestyle Project
The Ellenbrook Leisure and Lifestyle Project
progressed through consultation to design
stages in 2006/07 with the identiﬁcation
and endorsing of four important projects.
In the coming year, a new bowling facility,
a water playground, further development
of a cycleway and multi-use path, and
relocation and improvement of the local
BMX facility, will by undertaken, adding
signiﬁcant value to the lifestyles of
residents of all ages. The project is funded
by the State Government.

Place planning
Place planning is aimed at ensuring
the City of Swan is aware of what local
residents want for their community. It
integrates the City’s planning activities
to effectively plan, and more speciﬁcally,
deliver service and infrastructure for 13
place areas identiﬁed.
A place plan for the Guildford-Hazelmere
area was endorsed by Council in 2006/07
and various focus group meetings were
XdcYjXiZY[dgi]ZHlVcKVaaZneaVcid\Zi
a better understanding of what important
elements make up the character of Swan
KVaaZn#;dgi]Z7jaahWgdd`eaVXZeaVc!i]Z
City conducted two community workshops
and telephone interviews to capture
local resident’s vision and issues and
opportunities to be addressed in the future.
The Ballajura place plan has progressed
through workshops and a wide range of
meetings with community groups.
Town Planning Scheme 17
In 2002/03 the City took the major step
of preparing and initially adopting a new
9^hig^XiOdc^c\HX]ZbZ!`cdlcVhIdlc
Planning Scheme No. 17 (TPS 17) for
the entire City. TPS 17 will replace Town
Planning Scheme No. 9 which has been
operating since 1985.
The City of Swan Council approved a
ﬁnalised TPS 17 in April 2006.
In October 2006 the Western Australian
Planning Commission advised that the
Minister for Planning and Infrastructure
has decided to approve TPS 17 subject to
modiﬁcations to be negotiated between
the WAPC and the City of Swan prior to
ﬁnal approval by the Minister.

Swan Regional Riverside Park
9ZkZadebZcid[V&%%"]ZXiVgZg^kZgh^YZ
recreation park within two kilometres
of the Strategic Regional Centre of
Midland continued in 2006/07. This park
incorporates a beautiful riverside setting,
an important system of wetlands and
watercourses. It is also an important
Aboriginal cultural heritage site and a place
strongly associated with the founding
of the Swan River colony and European
hZiiaZbZcid[i]ZHlVcKVaaZn#
The year 2006/07 saw the adoption of the
Swan Regional Riverside Park (SRRP) by
key stakeholders the Western Australian
Planning Commission and the Swan River
Trust and the City has been working
with these agencies to progress the
development of the riverside parkland.
In collaboration with the community,
the Swan River Trust and the EMRC, the
City has been developing a restoration
management plan for the Blackadder Creek
Wetland which will direct the rehabilitation
of this degraded environmental asset.
Further, the City has been working with the
local indigenous community to establish
an Indigenous Reference Group for the
SRRP project. This group will provide
guidance on the development of the SRRP
- speciﬁcally the development of a cultural
interpretation centre and overseeing an
indigenous traineeship program.
The ongoing development of the park will
continue in 2007/08.
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The Vale structure plan
This new subdivision east of Ellenbrook will
be home to 14,000 people and residents.
Subdivisions started in late 2005.
In February 2007, the City endorsed the
hZXdcYd[i]Zi]gZZ9ZkZadebZciEaVch!
which include environmental management
plans, village centre plans and landscape
plans. Meanwhile planning for the
provision of up-front community facilities
and services is underway and signiﬁcant
reserves have built up over the last 12
bdci]h[gdbi]ZKVaZ8dbbjc^in;jcY#
Submission of plans for the third (and ﬁnal)
development area is expected in late 2007.
Midland Oval Masterplan
The City has worked closely with the
community in developing a Masterplan
VcYhjeedgi^c\Djia^cZ9ZkZadebZci
EaVcD9E[dgi]ZgZYZkZadebZcid[i]Z
11-hectare Midland Oval Precinct in the
heart of Midland. Council endorsed the
BVhiZgeaVcVcYhjeedgiZYi]ZYgV[iD9E^c
February 2007.
The plan provides for a mix of housing
styles and commercial activities, and
proposes to increase the local residential
population to improve the safety and
vitality of the Midland Regional Centre.
Almost 16 per cent or 1.76 hectares will
be retained as rejuvenated civic and public
open space.
The City is currently working towards
ÄcVa^h^c\i]ZD9EVcY[jgi]Zg
detailed planning and is considering
implementation options with respect to the
City’s landholding within the precinct.
Urban Growth Area
The City’s rapid urban growth will bring an
inﬂux of 50,000 people over the next 15
years, boosting the City’s population from
100,000 to nearly 150,000 by 2021. While
this growth is a plus for the City of Swan,
it means the City faces huge challenges
protecting precious environmental
resources, providing community facilities
and services, providing leisure and
sporting facilities, and planning for local
employment opportunities and public
transport services.
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The City continued to work in partnership
with the State Government to ensure
the proper planning of new urban areas,
which will provide better developments
for our residents and will enable the City
to plan for sustainable development at
a regional scale. City staff commenced
ldg`^c\idlVgYhVeVgicZgh]^el^i]9E>
and the developers for the development
d[V9^hig^XiHigjXijgZEaVci]Vil^aaXdkZg
the area south of Ellenbrook. Work on this
Structure Plan is expected to commence
early 2007/08.
Albion town structure plan
Planning progressed for the future
Albion Town, at Henley Brook (via
9^hig^XiHigjXijgZEaVcc^c\!l^i]i]Z
8^in!9E>VcYYZkZadeZghldg`^c\XadhZan
on environmental planning, water
management, open space, housing choice
and community facilities provision for this
development, which will house 14,000
people.
9Zh^\c\j^YZa^cZh[dg<j^aY[dgYVcY
Woodbridge
Existing design guidelines for the Guildford
Conservation Precinct were reviewed
and a new set of design guidelines were
prepared and released for community
comment.
9Zh^\c\j^YZa^cZhlZgZVahdegZeVgZYVcY
released for community comment for the
Woodbridge Conservation Precincts. Both
sets of design guidelines were endorsed
by the Council in early 2006/07 and aim
to ensure that the cultural signiﬁcance and
character of these areas is conserved and
protected.
Midland Reference Group
The City and the Midland Redevelopment
Authority have formed an innovative
community consultation group, made up of
a wide range of community and business
representatives, to provide strategic advice
on Midland’s revitalisation.
In 2005/06, the Midland Reference Group’s
ﬁrst project was to provide advice on the
future concepts for Midland Oval Precinct.
In July 2006 the group participated in
the Midland Freight Rail Realignment
9ZÄc^i^dcHijYnl]^X]lVhXddgY^cViZY^c
eVgicZgh]^el^i]9E>#

Midland Parking Strategy
The City began a review of the Midland
Parking Strategy, which was endorsed by
Council in 2003. The review will update
various data and give direction to car
parking in Midland for years to come. The
Strategy will address a range of related
topics like parking fees, duration of
parking, feasibility of decked parking and
opportunities for additional and improved
public and private transport.
An Advisory Group comprising City
Councillors and staff and external key
stakeholders (including representatives
from the Midland Redevelopment
Authority, Public Transport Authority and
the Midland business community) was
established to guide the review. The review
of the Strategy is expected to be ﬁnalised
by the end of the 2007/08 ﬁnancial year.
Guildford to Maylands Activity Corridor
The City of Swan signed a memorandum
of understanding in April 2007 with the
B^c^hiZg[dgEaVcc^c\>c[gVhigjXijgZ!
Western Australian Planning Commission
(WAPC), Town of Bassendean and City of
Bayswater for the purpose of facilitating
a comprehensive planning study of the
Maylands to Guildford section of the Perth
to Midland activity corridor.
This corridor is identiﬁed as a strategic
transit corridor within the WAPC’s Network
City Community Planning Strategy.
Planning for the corridor is based on
sustainable transit orientated development
principles. The City provides input into
the project through representation on the
project steering committee and project
management group and on an as needs
basis. The project is in the early phases of
research and scoping.

It is planned for this strategy to be released
for public comment in the 2007/08
ﬁnancial year.
Experience Gidgegannup
In August 2006, council endorsed the
Gidgegannup Sustainable Rural Produce
6Xi^k^i^ZhHigViZ\nVcY6Xi^dcEaVc#I]^h
plan was the ﬁnal stage of the Experience
Gidgegannup Project, which was one
of the key projects developed from the
Gidgegannup/Brigadoon Place Plan. The
Strategy was developed in consultation
with City of Swan, Experience Gidgegannup
and the Gidgegannup community (through
a community workshop).
This Strategy and Action Plan will guide
the economic development of rural and
tourism activities in Gidgegannup over
the next 5 years. The Strategy identiﬁes
key opportunities and constraints relating
to value-adding rural produce, rural and
tourism product diversiﬁcation and rural/
eco-tourism, and identiﬁes priority actions
for implementation.
I]ZHjhiV^cVWaZGjgVaEgdYjXZ6Xi^k^i^Zh
Strategy and Action Plan is a communitybased document. Experience Gidgegannup
and the City of Swan will jointly progress
its implementation.
Midland Arts and Culture Plan
The Midland Arts and Culture Plan went out
for public advertisement in March 2006. It
is to be ﬁnalised in the next ﬁnancial year
and will suggest a range of initiatives to
improve and increase the culture and arts
experiences for the City’s residents and
visitors.

Older Persons’ Accommodation Strategy
Like many local council areas in Australia
the population of older people will increase
substantially in the coming years. It is
predicted that within the City of Swan the
number of people over 65 will more than
double between 2007 and 2021.
To guide the City’s approach to address
the accommodation and service needs of
the growing number of older persons, the
City began the development of an Older
Persons’ Accommodation Strategy.
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Key result area 01 Leading the City of Swan
Encouraging business and investment
Home-based business
The City is at the forefront of local
government for encouraging home-based
businesses within the region. Regulations
in the Town Planning Scheme allow for
small scale, low nuisance work from home
businesses in residential and rural areas,
with minimal red tape for approval from
the City.
The City has worked with local business
development organisations to develop
business assistance packages tailored to
meet home-based business information
needs.
Small business
The City helped small businesses within the
area develop with free human resource,
marketing and other training for operators
in partnership with Edith Cowan University,
local business groups and AusIndustry.
KdjX]Zghjeid'%%lZgZ\^kZcVlVn
under the scheme for training. The City
also facilitated a series of export and trade
workshops for local business to help with
information and strategies to expand their
businesses.
A small business mentoring program
lVh^beaZbZciZY^ci]ZHlVcKVaaZn!
Bullsbrook, Gidgegannup and Upper Swan
with grant funding from AusIndustry. In
total, 102 local small businesses beneﬁted
from the provision of professional mentors.
The program runs into 2007/08.
Malaga Business Development Ofﬁcer
Malaga is one of the fastest growing
industrial areas in the Perth metropolitan
area. In 2006/07 the City of Swan
continued its support for businesses in the
Malaga area through the employment of
VcVgZV"heZX^ÄX7jh^cZhh9ZkZadebZci
Ofﬁcer. The ofﬁcer worked towards
attracting new businesses to the area,
generating business partnerships,
implementing business attraction
strategies and installation of appropriate
infrastructure.
The City also maintained the Malaga
business website www.malagabusiness.
com to make it easier for businesses to
communicate with the City and each other.
A new initiative introduced in 2006/07
was an online program linking Malaga
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businesses service providers and local
schools to advertise and ﬁll vacancies for
apprenticeships and traineeships.
Midland Business Development
A differential rate in the Midland Central
7jh^cZhh9^hig^Xi[jcYZYVbVg`Zi^c\
program for Midland and the engagement
of a business development ofﬁcer. This
program was designed to attract new
businesses to Midland and increase
customers to existing businesses.
Business website
The City has developed a website
speciﬁcally targeting current and future
businesses in the City of Swan. The
website, (www.swanbusiness.com), is
designed to provide user friendly access to
a wide range of business information and
assistance in the one location, including
links to other City of Swan business sites
and information.
Rapid Outer Swan Economic Spin-offs
(ROSES)
The City is running a project in
Gidgegannup and Bullsbrook which is
designed to facilitate viable, diverse and
long-term economic activity that will create
local employment opportunities, and
protect and strengthen the rural landscape
and economy. ROSES is funded by the
State Government’s Outer Metropolitan
Community Grants Scheme.

Tourism
Continuing commitment
The City of Swan continued to take a
leading role in developing tourist servicing
facilities and regional marketing within the
VgZV^c'%%+$%,i]gdj\]i]Z6YY^c\KVajZ
I]gdj\]Idjg^hb6KIIeaVc#I]Z8^in
also coordinated an expanded advertising
XVbeV^\cidegdbdiZi]ZHlVcKVaaZn^c
partnership with local businesses.
This developing role in visitor service,
regional marketing and tourism
infrastructure has established the City of
Swan as a leading local government in
tourism development.
With a focus on regional marketing the City
is helping to create a strong identity for
the Swan region as an accessible tourism
destination.
In 2006/07 the City continued preparation
of an on-line regional food and wine
produce database to encourage use of
locally produced foods in restaurants,
cafes, farm gate and cellar door sales. This
complements the release of the City’s
annual Harvest Calendar that shows the
wide variety of fresh food available the
whole year.
Swan Valley and Eastern Region Visitor
Centre
The City of Swan continued to operate the
HlVcKVaaZnVcY:VhiZgcGZ\^dcK^h^idg
Centre from the Old Guildford Courthouse
in 2006/07, providing a valuable service to
the area’s tourism industry and visitors to
the area.

Annual events and festivals
The City sponsors and organises many local
annual events and festivals, all designed
to encourage tourists to the region. Some
notable events this year included:
Avon Descent
Having the largest Swan River frontage in
the metropolitan area, the City provides
many spectacular viewing points for
this annual white water classic. The City
provides infrastructure and services to help
in the smooth running of the event for its
thousands of spectators and competitors,
as well as a popular family fun day event
at Sandalford Winery.
Lilac Hill festival match
The Lilac Hill Festival Cricket Match is
the opening game of the Australian
cricket team’s campaign for international
dominance every year. The City of Swan
has supported the game since the ﬁrst
match was played at the City-owned Lilac
Hill ground, Guildford, in October 1990.
Volunteer Week
The City of Swan celebrated the important
role that volunteers play in our community
Wn]dhi^c\I]Vc`VKdajciZZg9VnYjg^c\
cVi^dcVaKdajciZZgLZZ`^c9ZXZbWZg
'%%+#I]Vc`VKdajciZZg9VnZcXdjgV\Zh
organisations to recognise and thank
their volunteer staff for the contribution
they make both to the organisation and
^ci]Z^gXdbbjc^in#6k^hiVd[Khi]Z
Jc^iZYCVi^dchHnbWda[dgKdajciZZghlVh
planted in Carnegie Park in Midland.

The City-maintained and developed the
HlVcKVaaZnlZWh^iZlll#hlVckVaaZn#Xdb#
au which continued to evolve in 2006/07,
to make it easier to use and more
appealing for visitors to the area.
Swan Valley Bike Plan
The City of Swan continued its work on
i]ZHlVcKVaaZn7^`ZEaVc^c'%%+$%,!
with further planning and construction of
the path along West Swan Road, from the
existing pathway toward Guildford.
Work on interpretive signage for the
path was also progressed and is nearing
completion.
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Harmony Day and Peace Day
City of Swan school children were once
again invited to take part in the City of
Swan Peace Project. The children created
several thousand cranes which were sent
to the Hiroshima Peace Park Japan as part
d[EZVXZ9VnXZaZWgVi^dch#HdbZlZgZ
displayed at City of Swan venues.
Women on Wellness Week
To draw attention to the importance of
women leading healthy lifestyles, the City
of Swan organised a week of activities
celebrating Women on Wellness Week
in May. The week of activities organised
by City of Swan included a bush walk in
Ellenbrook, an all ability walk in Midland,
a Pap smear clinic and an all-day WOW
Expo at Swan Park Leisure Centre. The
expo provided women with a vast range of
health, leisure and exercise information.
Response to the City’s WOW activities,
particularly the expo, was extremely
positive.

Civic events and functions
CVi^dcVa6Wdg^\^cVaVcY>haVcYZg9Vnd[
8ZaZWgVi^dcC6>9D8
C6>9D8VX`cdlaZY\ZhVcYXZaZWgViZh
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
cultures and the achievements of
Indigenous people in Australia. A number
of events and activities took place in the
8^ind[HlVcidXZaZWgViZC6>9D8LZZ`^c
July 2006. The City also partnered with the
local Indigenous community to promote
GZXdcX^a^Vi^dc9Vnl]^X][VaahdcBVn'+
each year.
The City is also working with the newly
formed Maali Action Group to develop
several exciting initiatives by young
^cY^\ZcdjheZdeaZ[dgC6>9D8'%%,·
including an art exhibition at the bank
gallery, a hip hop event which was planned
and run by young indigenous people, and a
modelling program which will culminate in
a fashion show at Centrepoint.
Citizenship ceremonies
In the City of Swan, 724 people became
Australian Citizens in eight ceremonies
overseen by the City’s Mayor and
Councillors.
Family fun days
The City’s Picnic in the Park series of
events underwent a transformation in
2006/07 with new branding and increased
ﬂexibility to encourage the involvement of
community groups.
A Picnic in the Park event was held for
i]Z'%%+6kdc9ZhXZciViHVcYVa[dgY
L^cZgn!VcYV;Vb^an;jc9VnZkZcilVh
]ZaY^cXdc_jcXi^dcl^i]i]ZKVg^Zin8ajW¼h
@^bWZgaZn9^VbdcY7^`ZG^YZ^cBVgX]
2007 at Whiteman Park.
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Development in the City
Development applications
I]ZcjbWZgd[9ZkZadebZci6eea^XVi^dch
received by the City increased by 26
per cent from 730 in 2005/06 to 920 in
2006/07, similarly subdivision applications
received have increased by 11 per cent
from 173 to 190.

Electronic Lodgement System (ELS)
The Electronic Lodgement System (ELS)
is a single electronic lodgement point
for residential dwelling building licence
applications, and early results indicate
it will lead to much faster application
processing times and cost reductions for
the building industry.

The signiﬁcant increase in work load does
not include assessment of other types
of planning applications such as Outline
9ZkZadebZciEaVchVcYkVg^djh9ZiV^aZY
Area Plans, including general written and
verbal enquiries on all types of planning
matters. This, together with the shortage
of experienced statutory planners, has
placed pressure on current staff resources.

ELS was developed with the assistance
of a Federal Government AusIndustry
Regulation Reduction Incentive Fund
(RRIF) grant, by a consortium of ﬁve West
Australian Councils (including the City
of Swan), the WALGA, the HIA and ﬁve
building companies.

Building applications
With a $70 million increase in the value
for Building Licence applications this year
and a grand total value of building works
hitting $462 million, the complexity of
applications is growing with increased
densities and new forms of construction in
the City centre.

The City of Swan led a consortium to test
the system during 2006/07. At the close of
the ﬁnancial year, the project was weeks
away from being launched for general use.

The total number of building applications
in 2006/07 was 4,136. This equated to
125 less applications in total. The majority
decrease were dwellings, dropping by 92
to a total of 1185 in 2006/07 compared to
1277 in 2005/06.
Increasing numbers of applications are
being received for buildings built without
the required licences. This is not only an
expensive exercise for applicants but can
be very time consuming which can affect
settlement time frames for properties.
The back scanning of Building licence
records began in late 2006 to increase
building licence records available to staff
in the City Administration Centre. Records
from 1980 through to 1999 were available
on microﬁche and the years 2000 and
2001 became available digitally. Electronic
applications will reduce the need in
the future for scanning of records and
applications are available at the desktop
to assist staff when dealing with customer
enquiries.
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Project management
The City of Swan’s Project Management
section within the Operations area deals
speciﬁcally with the procurement of
individual projects. The projects dealt with
by this department are usually one-off
tasks, which once completed are passed
over to other sections who then are
responsible for the maintenance of the
created asset.
Road construction
The City’s big project, the Lloyd Street
upgrade between Morrison Road and
Great Eastern Highway, was substantially
completed in 2006/07. Other road works
in this particular area include The Crescent
and Cale Street, providing a major boost
to the commercial traders in the centre
of Midland. The Lloyd Street Extension
from Great Eastern Highway to the Great
Eastern Highway Bypass continues in its
design phase and will provide important
access to civic and private developments
in the future. In all, road projects, major
and minor, constituted approximately $9.4
million of value in 2006/07.
Landscape Architecture
Landscaping projects for 2006/07 included
the implementation of the Playspace
program, small wheel facilities, Trees to
Residents and a range landscaping in
conjunction with road projects. In all, $3.7
million of funds were allocated to creating
new projects.
Drainage
The City undertook drainage replacement,
renewal and upgrade works in 2006/07.
However, several drainage projects were
deferred to 2007/08 due to higher than
anticipated costs. A decision was made
to establish a drainage construction crew
and it is anticipated to have this crew
operational in 2007/08. It is expected this
new crew will reduce the costs associated
with drainage works.
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Footpaths
Footpaths are often considered the poor
cousin to roads but, when it comes to
lifestyle and safety issues, they rate very
highly. In 2006/07, $1.1million was spent
in the Capital Works Program on cycle
ways, footpaths and disability access.
Building Construction
The Ellenbrook Community Library was
completed in 2006/07. The Swan Caring
building was also extended to provide
valuable support facilities for the aged
population of the City.
Extensive community consultation for the
Kingﬁsher Pavilion led into the design
phase in 2006/07. This work will be put
out to tender in early 2007/08 and works
are expected to be programmed in a
manner that will minimise impact on the
sporting groups using the facility.
The City also constructed an additional
bowling green at the Midland Sports
Complex. This project, built with assistance
from the Shire of Mundaring, also
demonstrates the City’s willingness to form
mutually beneﬁcial partnerships.

Maintenance
Road Maintenance
Maintaining the local road infrastructure
is a major function of the City and a
signiﬁcant amount of resources are
allocated to improving and maintaining
this asset base. Works were undertaken
in each ward with more than $3.85 million
being allocated to road maintenance,
including roads, kerbs, drainage, sweeping,
footpaths and street lighting.
<gdjcYBV^ciZcVcXZ^cXajY^c\EVg`h
Natural Environmental Maintenance)
Ground maintenance is another major
function of the City, incorporating verge,
parks, natural environment and street tree
maintenance. The City is responsible for
maintaining infrastructure to meet the
standard of safety and amenity required by
the community. Again works have been
undertaken in each Ward with more than
$7.7 million allocated to such work – an
increase of $1.94 million.
Building Maintenance
Building maintenance delivered as part
of the service provision of facilities
management included reactive building
repairs and planned maintenance to all
City buildings. Works were undertaken in
each Ward with more than $1.5m being
allocated to this work.

Road safety works
People living or passing through the
City of Swan can now drive more safely
and comfortably this year after the City
spent $403,000 on road safety projects in
2006/07. Works included the installation
of roundabouts, median islands and
intersection modiﬁcations including the
phasing of trafﬁc signals.
Place management
The City of Swan consists of a number of
very diverse places, each with common
local interests, referred to as place areas.
Place Based Management recognises
that the planning, design and delivery
of services, projects and other activities
should be tailored to meet the different
needs of people in each place area, by
involving them and giving them a greater
say.
The City has gradually been shifting to a
focus on place based management over
several years. Place management is
deployed with Place Managers appointed,
and established Place Teams in the West
area, Ellenbrook and Midland are fully
operational.
The Rural area will be established during
2007/08. This initiative will continue
to facilitate the provision of high quality
services at a place level to respond to
individual place needs and characteristics.

Minor Capital Building Works
Building Facilities Management delivered
a program of capital upgrade, renewal
and replacement to buildings and their
components to all wards. A total exceeding
$850,000 was successfully invested in this
area.
Drainage Studies
The City of Swan Council resolved to
impose a Speciﬁed Area Rate (SAR) to
egdeZgi^Zh^ci]Z<j^aY[dgY9gV^cV\Z9^hig^Xi
as part of the 2005/06 Rating Strategy
to fund the cost of construction and
maintenance of drainage infrastructure.
The drainage studies for Guildford and
South Guildford were completed in
2006/07, and upgrading to drainage is
proposed in 2007/08.
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KEY RESULT AREA 3
The City’s efforts to enhance community
and social development, personal wellbeing, community health and safety,
leisure and life-long learning are detailed
in this section.
The City of Swan strives to provide its
residents and ratepayers with opportunities
for personal development in the belief
that individual and family health, safety
and satisfaction are keys to developing an
integrated and harmonious community.
This is a complex area as there are many
aspects and variables to enhancing a
community including physical ﬁtness,
mental well-being and a sense of
community, to name a few.
Recreation
Recreation facilities
The City maintained and operated the
Altone Park Leisure Centre, Swan Park
Leisure Centre and Ballajura Aquatic centre
throughout 2006/07. Attendances for
2006/07 were consistent with the previous
year.
Altone Park
2005/06
2006/07

Attendance 325,237
Attendance 315,938

Ballajura
2005/06
2006/07

Attendance 125,564
Attendance 132,103

Swan Park
2005/06
2006/07

Attendance 289,979
Attendance 282,667

Midland Sports Complex
The City also maintained and operated
the Midland Sports Complex throughout
2006/07. In conjunction with the Shire of
BjcYVg^c\VcYi]Z9ZeVgibZcid[Hedgi
GZXgZVi^dc!i]Z8^inXdbb^hh^dcZYi]Z
construction of a new Synthetic Bowling
Green in May 2007. The Complex now has
three bowling greens.
Living Longer Living Stronger
The City of Swan in 2006/07 continued
its support for the Living Longer Living
Stronger (LLLS) program.
LLLS is an evidence-based program that
encourages the improved health, quality of
life and ﬁtness of people aged more than
50 years. The program seeks to maximise
opportunities for people to take part in
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affordable, high quality and result-oriented
strength training programs for the long
term. Across the City’s three leisure centres
there are approximately 250 community
members involved in the program
reﬂecting the community’s awareness of
ﬁtness and lifestyle needs.
Facility booking service
The City continues to manage the bookings
for its 80 community centres, halls, ovals,
pavilions and public open spaces. These
centres are an integral part of community
life and are used by over 225 user groups,
including sporting clubs and associations
(both junior and senior), community
organisations and commercial clients
providing leisure-based services.
Parks, reserves and sportsgrounds
Playspace Strategy
Council adopted a Playspace Strategy
for the City in October 2006. All existing
playgrounds were assessed for this strategy
and future upgrades and replacements
were planned. This has resulted in the
adoption of a ﬁve-year refurbishment and
replacement schedule and development
of guidelines for the provision of quality
and diversity in future play opportunities
throughout the City.
Morgan Fields youth facilities
The City identiﬁed a need for youth activity
facilities in Morgan Fields. With ﬁnancial
support from the Outer Metropolitan
Community Fund, work is completed on the
construction of the facilities at Sandown
Park. A notable feature of this project has
been the strong youth representation and
consultation with local residents of all
ages.
Gidgegannup multi-purpose courts
Planning and development work was
completed in 2006/07 on two multipurpose courts at the Percy Cullen
sportsground in Gidgegannup.

Ballajura skate/BMX (small wheeled)
facility
Working closely with local youth and the
7VaaV_jgVNdji]VcY8dbbjc^inKZcijgZ!
the City developed a concept design for the
Ballajura skate/BMX (small wheels) facility.
A comprehensive public comment phase
resulted in some beneﬁcial changes to the
concept design. Construction is scheduled
for the 2007/08 ﬁnancial year.
Ellenbrook skate/BMX facility
Planning commenced for a skate/BMX
facility for Ellenbrook to be located
adjacent to Coolamon Oval. A number of
design workshops were held with local
youth, which culminated in a draft concept
design for the facility. Construction is
scheduled for the 2007/08 ﬁnancial year.
Altone Park BMX facility
The collaboration of local stakeholders and
the City of Swan has resulted in a new
Altone BMX facility catering for riders of all
abilities and skills. The track has been well
received with riders utilising the facility on
a regular basis, increasing overall usage
of the Altone open space and playing
ﬁelds signiﬁcantly in the process. More
importantly, is the facility’s engagement
of the region’s young people, who had an
active say in the design and construction of
the track.
Library services
In 2006/07, the City’s six public libraries
processed 823,523 loans for 40,458 active
registered members and were visited
555,375 times. While borrowing library
materials is still the main focus for library
customers, there is growing demand in
all libraries for internet access and special
programs and activities.
Communications at Altone, Ballajura
and Guildford Libraries have been vastly
improved thanks to an upgrade in the
telecommunications line to ﬁberoptic cable.
This has resulted in better response times
for staff and patrons, and a more reliable
connection.

City of Swan residents may now register
for library membership online through
KjW^hLZW!i]Z8^ind[HlVc¼ha^WgVgnlZW
interface. Members can now amend
their details as well as check the Library
catalogue, place reservations and search
the available on-line databases.
In line with the City of Swan’s corporate
priority of self-help, self-checkout
units have been installed at Ellenbrook
Community Library, and Altone Park,
Ballajura and Midland public libraries.
Services to young people again proved
popular in 2006/07. Programs included
the annual family Teddy Bears Picnic
Vi7VaaV_jgVEjWa^XA^WgVgn0i]Z7ZiiZg
Beginnings program, an early intervention
family literacy program for young
children, was offered through all libraries
in conjunction with the local child
]ZVai]cjghZ0i]Z@Vc\VGZVYZgh8ajW!
encouraging Year One children within
the City to access their local City of Swan
a^WgVgn0VcYHidgni^bZhZhh^dch[dgegZ"
schoolers held in all libraries to promote
the importance and fun of reading. Popular
demand prompted additional Rhymetime
sessions for babies from birth to 24months-old at ﬁve of the City’s six libraries.
In 2007, The City of Swan Libraries
XddgY^cViZYI]ZBVgn9jgVX`6lVgY[dg
Young Writers, a writing competition held
annually in partnership with the City of
Armadale and the shires of Kalamunda and
Mundaring.
The City of Swan’s heritage continues to
be a focus with the Local History Librarian
providing specialist assistance to clients
and further developing the collection of
historical information and resources. The
City’s Local History Librarian is located at
Midland Public Library.
Finding My Place, a career guidance
program for local youth, continued in
2006/07 at Bullsbrook Community Library.
The program was made possible with grant
bdc^ZhgZXZ^kZY[gdbi]Z9ZeVgibZcid[
Education and Training.
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A weekly morning program of guest
speakers and chat sessions for seniors
organised by Midland Public Library was
well supported with those attending
visiting the library before or after the
sessions.
Ellenbrook Community Resource Centre
The new Ellenbrook Community Resource
Centre opened in March 2007. Adjacent to
Ellenbrook Secondary College, it has been
designed as a focal point for the Ellenbrook
community, serving the Secondary College
and the community, and includes a
Community Library, Performing Arts Centre,
City ofﬁces, ofﬁces for community groups
and conference and meeting rooms.

Swan Community Care Services
Swan Community Care Services (SCCS)
provides practical help and support to
the City’s frail aged and people with
disabilities. Service helps people remain
independent, improve their quality of life
and try to prevent their premature entry
into residential care. Services offered
include client assessments, information
and advocacy, day centre and home-based
respite (including dementia speciﬁc), carer
support, personal care, domestic help and
transport.
In 2006/07, SCCS attracted $1.66 million
of government funding which enabled the
provision of the above services to 1423
clients on 68,215 occasions.

The City developed the facility in
eVgicZgh]^el^i]i]Z9ZeVgibZcid[
Education. Grants were also received from
Lottery West, while the State Library of
Western Australia provided additional stock
through its existing arrangements with the
City of Swan under The Library Board Act
of WA.

9jg^c\i]ZeVhi&'bdci]hi]ZH88H
headquarters at Swan Caring (Midland)
has undergone a transformation with
the refurbishment and extension to the
existing building, including improved
day centre facilities, new client lounge,
changes to the ofﬁce area and remodelled
reception area.

The Ellenbrook Community Library is
innovative in philosophy and design,
concentrating on improved customer
hZgk^XZ0deedgijc^i^Zh[dghZa[]Zae0bdYZgc
technology for public use and opportunities
for lifelong learning.

Other facilities and program centres
overseen and operated by SCCS in 2006/07
include Elvire Chalets (Midland), Western
Swan Home Support (Beechboro) and Swan
Community Transport (Middle Swan). SCCS
also provide outreach services at Woodlake
Community Centre (Ellenbrook), and at
Lowery Park (Bullsbrook).

It is designed around the concept of
separate multi-functional areas for different
VXi^k^i^Zh^cXajY^c\hijYZciXaVhhVgZVh0
VcZcXadhZYfj^ZigZVY^c\VgZV0X]^aYgZc¼h
activity area, youth space and a life-long
learning/seminar room. The library is open
seven days a week.

Swan Community Transport
Swan Community Transport (SCT)
provides transport for its clients to enable
them to attend medical appointments,
shopping trips and social activities. It is
another way in which the City promotes
the independence and wellbeing of its
residents.
SCT provided services to 734 residents and
made 36,090 one-way trips throughout
2006/07. It attracted $293,882 of
government funding.
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Volunteers
Swan Community Care Services Advisory
Committee celebrated its Silver Jubilee in
October 2006. From its humble beginnings
25 years ago the Advisory Committee
has played a very important part in the
development of SCCS to the service that
we know today. The Advisory Committee
spearheads a team of 75 volunteers,
whose hard work and commitment has
guaranteed the continued success of SCCS.
Community development
The City of Swan continued its strong
commitment to strengthening our
communities during 2006/07, working
collaboratively with local groups to develop
programs and services and to support
community based organisations.
The City’s community development
programs focused on enhancing the
positive aspects of the community, as
well as helping the community to respond
locally to challenges. There has been an
increased focus on the development of
local initiatives as a part of our place-based
management approach.
Community involvement and wellbeing
is enhanced with more and varied
community activity, events, programs,
networks and services than would
otherwise be likely.
Children and family services
The City continued its lead role in the Early
Years Strategy in 2006/07, brokering a
collaborative approach with government,
community groups and businesses. The
Early Years Strategy focuses on the early
years of a child’s life, by supporting parents
in their key role.
In an inter-agency approach through the
Midland Early Years Action Group (MEYAG),
the City continues to facilitate and
advocate for additional resources at the
state and federal levels, for easier access
to services and a more timely response
to social issues. A regular newspaper
column continues to provide valuable
information to parents and a collaborative
school holiday program, delivered in
partnership with business and community
groups, ensures children have a range
of interesting experiences during school
vacation periods.

Young people
The City continued its commitment to
young people during 2006/07 with a
strong team of development ofﬁcers
and outreach workers who supported
community-based agencies and groups to
deliver appropriate programs and services.
I]ZNdji]9ZkZadebZciiZVb]VkZheZci
the past 12 months completing the City’s
Youth Plan (with the ﬁndings due in
November 2007), and an action plan to be
launched in early 2008.
Youth centre support
The City continued to support the growth
and development of community-run youth
centres and services in Ballajura, Midland
and Altone, and moved to provide more
ﬁnancial and stafﬁng security for centres
by establishing service agreements and
signiﬁcantly increasing core funding in
2007. This is in recognition that State
Government funding is insufﬁcient to allow
the centres to provide the level of services
gZfj^gZY!eVgi^XjaVganI]Z9jc\Zdcndji]
centre in Ballajura. If the State continues
idgZ[jhZ[jcY^c\!i]Z9jc\Zdc^h^cgZVa
danger of closing in March 2008, which will
signiﬁcantly affect the community.
The City has also continued to support the
7VaaV_jgVNdji]VcY8dbbjc^inKZcijgZ
group to lobby the state government for
appropriate funding, and develop strategic
planning for ongoing sustainability.
In Ellenbrook, the City developed programs
around the Cool Room centre, including
a range of engagement and holiday
activities, while continuing to develop
partnership with community groups,
schools and agencies.
In Altone, the City supported the
involvement of young people and key
community agencies in the construction of
highly successful BMX bike tracks. The City
also entered into a partnership to develop
the REAL (Recreation, Education, Arts and
Life skills) program to operate from 2008.
In Bullsbrook, the City is supporting a local
network to develop an exciting project for
installation of a part-time youth space.
In Midland, the Council endorsed ongoing
support to the Swan City Youth Service by
allocating land within the Midland Oval
Precinct for the construction of a purposebuilt facility.
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Youth Advisory Committee
The City’s Youth Advisory Committee (YAC)
continued to operate throughout 2006/07
with its members meeting monthly to plan
and develop community projects for young
people, including the popular Hyper youth
festival, several community art projects and
local events across the City. The YAC is also
a group through which young people can
raise issues and make recommendations to
the Council.
Hyper youth festival
Hyper 2007 continued to build on the
success of previous years, with another
celebration of vibrant youth culture
organised for young people, by young
people. More than 3,500 young people
enjoyed the ﬁnal event – which boasted a
range of activities including major music
headlines, dance, skating, art, rides and
food.
A key expansion of the role of the festival
in 2007 enabled a range of arts/recreation
organisations to become involved as
partners – including Heatseeker, WAM
(West Australian Music Industry),
Propelarts, Groove FM, Healthway, and the
9ZeVgibZcid[HedgiVcYGZXgZVi^dc#
A major success of the festival program
was the involvement of young people,
with a dedicated Event Team and a
volunteer crew of more than 100 young
people dedicating at least 2000 volunteer
hours to planning the event.

Recreation Education Arts and Life Skills
program
R.E.A.L. was established by a collective
of Midland-based agencies to provide
meaningful activity options for local
young people identiﬁed as being in need
of targeted support, and also to increase
positive relationships between young
people and Swan Park Leisure Centre.
As part of the multi-agency partnership,
the City undertakes the signiﬁcant
responsibility of employing the program
coordinator and administering grant
funding.
In 2006/07 the program continued
successfully with a number of activities
and camps held. The local Aboriginal
Men’s Group – Gnulla Maaman Moort
Boodja – played a key role in helping to
educate young people on the signiﬁcance
of culture.
In September 2007, a second REAL Program
is due to start in Kiara/Lockridge as part
of a partnership between the City and the
Stand By Me Youth Service.
Seniors
Seniors Week
9jg^c\HZc^dghLZZ`^cDXidWZg'%%+V
Seniors Expo was held at the Midland Town
Hall. This provided seniors with a wide
range of information including health,
wellbeing, housing options, services, care
services, alternative therapies and exercise
opportunities.
Many City of Swan departments were
represented including libraries, leisure
XZcigZh!HlVcKdajciZZgh!i]ZHlVcKVaaZn
VcY:VhiZgcGZ\^dcK^h^idg8ZcigZVcYHlVc
Community Care Services.
The expo was met with a positive response
and many participants indicated they had
learned something new at the event.
Older Person’s Accommodation Strategy
The City of Swan in 2006/07 continued
to investigate the housing needs of older
people with the development of the Older
Persons’ Accommodation Strategy.
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Seniors’ Information Sessions
Information sessions continued to be
held in various Place areas, providing
seniors with relevant information from
Centrelink and other government and nongovernment agencies.
Tales of Times Past
Tales of Times Past is an intergenerational,
intercultural seniors’ project, coordinated
by the City of Swan and funded by a grant
from the Outer Metropolitan Community
Fund. The project helps local seniors hone
their storytelling skills, and then speak
with schoolchildren, as a way to improve
communication between the generations
and also to bring local history to life.
The Midland Group continues to go from
strength to strength and is supporting
seniors from other areas. Work has
commenced on an anthology of stories.
Disability access
As an organisation committed to enhancing
community well-being, the City of Swan
aims to ensure people with disabilities are
afforded the same opportunities as others
within the community. The City of Swan
continues to demonstrate through the
development of a range of programs and
activities in partnership with government
and non-government agencies.
In 2006/07 the City appointed a consultant
idldg`l^i]i]Z9^hVW^a^in6XXZhhVcY
>cXajh^dc8dbb^iiZZÄcVa^hZ^ih9^hVW^a^in
Access and Inclusion Plan, to be lodged
l^i]i]Z9^hVW^a^inHZgk^XZh8dbb^hh^dcWn
31 July 2007.
Swan Grants
Swan Grants is the City of Swan’s grants
program, designed to help fund community
groups and community projects that would
otherwise not be possible.
In 2006/07 the City of Swan provided 48
grants totalling $282,714.

Road safety
Roadwise program
The City again this year continued to work
with the Roadwise Committee to promote
and support road initiatives within the City,
including twice-yearly car safety check
events, the pre-Christmas Arrive Alive
publicity campaign and assisting the Police
with Community Speed Watch Strategies.
The RoadWise committee is comprised
of representatives from the City, police,
RoadWise, FESA, community groups and
the local community.
Local area speed zoning
The City continued to work with Main
Roads Western Australia (MRWA) on a joint
initiative to provide posted speed zones
to rural communities. In 2006/07 the City
worked with MRWA to establish another
local area speed zone in Gidgegannup.
Community safety
The City of Swan’s Community Safety
unit in 2006/07 was made up of
Community Rangers, Customer Advocates,
9ZkZadebZci8dbea^VcXZVcYKdajciZZg
Emergency Services (Bush Fire Brigades
and State Emergency Services). It was
also responsible for providing various
community safety initiatives such as the
community-funded security patrols within
:aaZcWgdd`VcYI]ZK^cZh#
The Community Safety unit dealt with
8,072 requests for service in the 2006/07
ﬁnancial year. Of that, 3,337 (41 per cent)
were related to animal requests (eg dogs,
stock), 1,331 (16 per cent) were related
to development compliance issues while
1,037 (13 per cent) were parking related,
and 459 (6 per cent) were relevant to Fire
Control. The remaining 1,908 (24 per cent)
were generic categories including initial
inspections for maintenance issues.
In 2006/07 the City employed ﬁve
customer advocates that operated in
speciﬁc places within the City to help
residents with day to day service provision
and manage community expectations of
the City’s service delivery. These ofﬁcers
dealt with almost 50 per cent of the
Community Safety unit’s requests for
service.
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New equipment and vehicles – ﬁre
services
The Emergency Services Levy (ESL)
continues to facilitate new appliances and
Zfj^ebZcije\gVYZh[dgi]ZKdajciZZg
Bush Fire Brigades in the City of Swan.
9jg^c\'%%+$%,VcZlA^\]iIVc`ZglVh
allocated to the City and the Swan State
Emergency Service received a new General
Rescue trailer. Each year emergency
service appliances are programmed for
replacement in line with the Fire and
Emergency Services Authority’s (FESA) risk
to resource model.
A new facility to house the Swan State
Emergency Service and the Swan
Communications Brigade is being planned
after discussions between FESA and
the City of Swan during 2006/07. This
Facility will enhance the efﬁciency and
professionalism of both emergency service
units in carrying out the volunteer duties
for the community. The project is currently
being scoped by the City for the design and
costing of the facility. In addition, the City
has identiﬁed land in a suitable location in
consultation with all stakeholders.
Arts and culture
The City of Swan’s arts and culture program
for 2006/07 focussed on working with
the community to strengthen the strong
arts traditions in the region. The Cultural
9ZkZadebZciD[ÄXZg]Vhldg`ZYXadhZan
with local artists and arts groups to
mount exhibitions of interest to the local
community.
Midland Arts and Culture Infrastructure
Study
The City engaged consultants to undertake
a study of arts and culture infrastructure in
the Midland area to assist with planning of
both built facilities and the future cultural
programs. This study was jointly funded by
the City and the Midland Redevelopment
Authority.
The bank gallery
The bank gallery is an exhibition and artist
space serving the communities of Swan
and the north-eastern region, providing
opportunities for people to interact with
innovative ideas and local installations.
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World music
In partnership with Kulcha Multicultural
Arts, the City continued the popular
outdoor concert series Kulcha on Swan
throughout the City in the summer
and autumn of 2006/07. Multicultural
bands and dancers were featured in free
performances and workshops, and local
community groups worked with the Kulcha
on Swan series to create vibrant events in
locations across the City.
Environmental health
Health and pollution complaints
The City’s ofﬁcers assisted the community
in investigating 872 environmental
health complaints in 2006/07. This
was an increase of 24 per cent on the
previous year. Assistance was sought
by the community on various matters
including noise (30 per cent), air pollution
(24 per cent), food safety (21 per cent),
water, public health pests (eg rodents,
mosquitoes) and accommodation issues. A
total of 84 per cent of health and pollution
complaints were resolved within 30 days of
an investigation being instigated.
The City’s Environmental Health services
also assisted the community by responding
to 4,963 telephone inquiries from
community members on environmental
health issues during the year.
Food safety
The City has a key role in ensuring safe and
hygienic food is prepared and sold to the
community in the City.
9jg^c\i]ZnZVgjcYZggZk^Zli]Z
City undertook 1,435 risk assessment
inspections of the 628 food premises
within its boundaries. This is a decrease of
one premises from the previous ﬁnancial
year. A total of 79 improvement orders
were issued with respect to food safety in
food premises. Overall, a good standard of
food hygiene and safety was maintained in
the City’s food businesses.

Monitoring
The City routinely monitors commercial
businesses to which the public have access,
to ensure the protection of community
health and safety when attending such
facilities. This includes all public swimming
pools, lodging houses, skin penetration and
hairdressing businesses, caravan parks and
public buildings, ranging from cinemas to
hbVaaXdbbjc^in]Vaah#9jg^c\i]ZnZVgV
total of 247 monitoring inspections were
completed.
Large public events
The City has seen a signiﬁcant growth in
large outdoor public entertainment events
over the last 5 years, increasing from half a
dozen events per summer to over 50 in the
last year. The City has taken an increasing
role in the risk management of such
events to ensure that events are safe and
successful, for patrons attending and the
local community.
Contaminated sites
Contaminated sites have been a signiﬁcant
concern of many community members,
especially after several high proﬁle cases
in the City. The new Contaminated Sites
6Xi'%%(idd`Z[[ZXi[gdbi]Z&9ZXZbWZg
2006.

Waste management
The City’s provided a weekly waste
collection service to 37,455 households
during 2006/07, collecting a total of
40,157 tonnes of refuse. Meanwhile
the recycling service collected 9,757
tonnes of recycled household and green
waste material in 2006/07 from 33,798
households. Throughout the year the total
number of household services was 1.95
million while the number of recycling
services undertaken was 878,755. In the
last ﬁnancial year the City has replaced
three refuse/recycling trucks and
purchased an additional truck to cater for
the growth within the city.
The City has also invested $1.2 million
into a new modern recycling facility.
This facility, located in Wangara, is a
joint partnership between the cities of
Wanneroo, Joondalup and Swan and will be
completed in November 2007.
The facility will greatly enhance the level
of recycling material that is capable of
being processed from the area.

All landowners, including the City, are now
required to report any sites which they
know or suspect may be contaminated in
VcnlVn#I]Z9ZeVgibZcid[:ck^gdcbZci
and Conservation is now in the process of
classifying and registering sites under the
new Act, which provides, for the ﬁrst time,
a legislated regime to identify and manage
such sites.
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Valuing our natural environment
The City’s work toward protecting and
enhancing the natural environment is
recounted in this section. Speciﬁcally
noted is the environmentally awareness
to
planning,
the
identiﬁcation
of high value ecosystems and
measures to minimise pollution.

KEY RESULT AREA 4
The City’s work toward protecting and
enhancing the natural environment is
recounted in this section. Speciﬁcally
noted is the environmentally awareness to
planning, the identiﬁcation of high value
ecosystems and measures to minimise
pollution.
The City’s signiﬁcance as a water
catchment and green-belt for Perth gives
regional signiﬁcance to many of the
environment issues it faces as does the
number of features of regional signiﬁcance
to be found within the area including
two river systems, Swan Coastal Plain,
i]Z9Vga^c\VcY9VcYVgV\VcEaViZVjhVcY
several reservations and conservation
areas. To avoid the adverse effects of
the region’s current rapid growth on
the natural environment, the City has
made concerted efforts to ensure the
environment is a key consideration when
making decisions about planning and
development.
Environmental planning and programs
Private Landholder Incentives Strategy
The City of Swan is at the forefront of
biodiversity conservation, after it became
one of the ﬁrst local governments in
Western Australia to ﬁnalise its Local
Biodiversity Strategy in November 2005.
The Local Biodiversity Strategy is a
framework for conserving biodiversity in
the City Of Swan. It is a key document
guiding natural resource management in
the City over the next ﬁve to ten years.
The City has commenced work on a Private
Landholder Incentives Strategy, one of the
recommendations from the Biodiversity
Strategy, in partnership with WWFAustralia. This Strategy aims to preserve
biodiversity on private land, is to engage
a wide range of landowners and will be
ﬁnalised in 2007/08.

44 | Annual report 2006 – 2007

About 60 per cent of native habitats in
the Swan region have been cleared for
settlement and agriculture, and land
clearing continues to be the biggest threat
to bushland. Remaining remnants of native
vegetation and supporting ecosystems are
extremely fragmented but still have a high
conservation value.
Of this remaining vegetation, 60 per cent
exists on private property.
Swan Regional Riverside Park
9ZkZadebZcid[V&%%"]ZXiVgZg^kZgh^YZ
recreation park within two kilometres
of the strategic regional centre of
Midland continued in 2006/07. This park
incorporates a beautiful riverside setting,
an important system of wetlands and
watercourses. It is also an important
Aboriginal cultural heritage site and a
place strongly associated with European
settlement.
In collaboration with the community,
the Swan River Trust and the EMRC, the
City has been developing a restoration
management plan for the Blackadder Creek
Wetland which will direct the rehabilitation
of this degraded environmental asset.
Blackadder Creek is a contributor of
nutrients to the Swan River and so
the restoration of this culturally and
environmentally signiﬁcant asset is
important
Additionally, the City of Swan prepared a
foreshore management and revegetation
plan in consultation with stakeholders,
landowners, Indigenous representatives
and the wider community. It seeks
to protect the riverbank and provide
community access to the foreshore that
will not further damage the riverbank

KZ\ZiVi^dcVadc\i]Zg^kZgWVc`^ci]Z
Swan Regional Riverside Park is severely
damaged, and in some places all that
exists is a single line of mature trees.
This leaves the foreshore open to erosion
and without proper management and
revegetation, more damage to the
foreshore could result.
Revegetation works along the threekilometre foreshore will be staged
according to the severity of riverbank
erosion and the availability of funding.
The City is in the process of establishing
partnerships with local community groups
to assist with revegetation efforts.
Hazardous waste
The City of Swan encouraged its residents
to clear their properties of agricultural and
chemical drums as part of the drumMUSTER
program.

Rural Properties Revegetation Program
The City of Swan gave owners of rural
property the chance to improve the
environment with its Rural Properties
Revegetation Program. The program
enabled landowners with properties within
the City of Swan that are 10,000 square
metres (2.5 acres) or larger to apply to
receive a free allocation of locally native
trees, shrubs and groundcovers free from
the City.
Support for local catchment groups
The City of Swan provided ﬁnancial
support for environmental projects being
operated by various community groups
throughout the City of Swan. More than
$40,300 in grants was made for a variety
of environmental programs via the City’s
Swan Grants program.

The program is a joint project between the
National Farmers Federation, Australian
AdXVa<dkZgcbZci6hhdX^Vi^dc!6K8VgZVcY
KZiZg^cVgnBVcj[VXijgZghVcY9^hig^Wjidgh
Association with support from the City of
Swan.
Under the project, residents can take all
clean, empty drums, from one-litre to
'%*"a^igZh!idi]ZGZY=^aaLVhiZ9^hedhVa
Facility.
The City also continued its twice yearly
collections of household hazardous
products and chemicals.
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Managing

the

organisation

9ZiV^ah d[ i]Z ^ciZgcVa hjeedgi VcY
management
services
provided
within the City of Swan to enable the
effective delivery of services to the
community are provided in this section.

KEY RESULT AREA 5

Key result area 01 Leading the City of Swan
9ZiV^ahd[i]Z^ciZgcVahjeedgiVcY
management services provided within
the City of Swan to enable the effective
delivery of services to the community are
provided in this section.
Proper and effective management of the
components that make up the organisation
is integral to the quality of the services,
opportunities and development offered to
the community by the City of Swan. The
City strives to be innovative in its approach
to management in order to provide the
community with the best possible service.
City of Swan Council
The City’s Council is elected by the
community to represent it and govern its
course into the future with direct input
from the residents and ratepayers. Council
is responsible for overseeing the City’s
ﬁnances and resources and determining
its policies and laws to ensure the City’s
responsibilities are carried out effectively
and efﬁciently.
Information technology
In 2006/07 the City embarked on a staged
upgrade program to improve network
services for its staff and clients at its
various libraries, service and recreational
centres. Stage 1 of the upgrade was
completed and included ﬁbre and licensed
microwave links to its Ballajura Library/
Ballajura Aquatic Centre, Altone Park
Library/Altone Park Leisure Centre,
Guildford Library, Ellenbrook Middle School
Library, Swan Park Leisure Centre, Swan
Community Care Services and the Swan
KVaaZn:VhiZgcGZ\^dcK^h^idg8ZcigZ#
These links not only enable the City’s
widespread staff to access applications and
data located at our main data centre in
Midland with speed and reliability, but also
enable our clients to have free high speed
internet access at our libraries.
A key indicator of information technology
success at the City is the availability of
its programs and services. All the core
applications of the City had an availability
of above 99 per cent.
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Geographic Information Systems
The City is in its third year of providing
Geographical Information Services to
the City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder as part
of a partnership agreement signed in
November 2004 where Kalgoorlie-Boulder
bears the cost of providing these services.
The City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder now uses
the latest in GIS technology and some of
the best aerial photography available to
the public, surpassing a majority of the
Perth metropolitan councils.
Road numbering and naming
In April 2007, the City completed the
Rural Street Numbering project issuing
1500 new street numbers to rural
properties. The continued use of some
lot numbers had the potential to confuse
emergency services, visitors and delivery
services. The new street numbers meet
a national standard, reducing the risk
that an emergency vehicle is delayed. In
conjunction with the numbering of rural
properties, roads that had been identiﬁed
as anomalies have been investigated for
renaming.
The continual development of suburbs like
Ellenbrook, Aveley, Midland and others
within the City requires street numbering
to be carefully prepared to meet the needs
of developers, customers and a growing
City. A process of correcting anomalous
roads throughout the City was started and
working together with residents, solutions
have been ﬁnalised to re-name sections of
the affected roads.
Planning
AUS-SPEC
Best practice in all its subdivision,
property development and internal works
was the aim for the City with AUS-SPEC
documentation as its guide for capital
work standards. AUS-SPEC #1 provides a
basis upon which design procedures can be
standardised, while AUS-SPEC #2 operates
similarly for construction speciﬁcations.
The two documents play an important role
in the management of the City’s assets.
Contractors and suppliers to the City of
Swan now have access to all the City’s AUSSPEC based contract documentation and
guidelines via the council’s website.

Organisational planning and
development
The Organisational Planning and
9ZkZadebZciWjh^cZhhjc^ilVhgZ[dgbZY
in February 2007. The key role of
this business unit is to drive business
improvement throughout the organisation.
Areas of focus include business planning
and strategy development, performance
measurement, and policy and process
development. This work is performed using
the Business Excellence Framework to plan,
develop and monitor our management and
leadership systems.
Dg\Vc^hVi^dcVaEaVcc^c\VcY9ZkZadebZci
are currently developing a Strategic
Improvement Plan that details the
improvement initiatives the organisation
will undertake in the following three-year
period.
In 2006/07 major achievements for
Dg\Vc^hVi^dcVaEaVcc^c\9ZkZadebZci
included:

 '*!%%%[dgV]dbZWVhZYWjh^cZhh
project (Home Based Connect) from the
9ZeVgibZcid[AdXVa<dkZgcbZciVcY
GZ\^dcVa9ZkZadebZci
Occupational health and safety
Occupational safety and health audit and
evaluation
In 2006/07, the City’s Occupational Safety
and Health program was audited.
The full audit results indicated that the
fundamental safety and health elements
are in place. In this audit the City scored
the following:
 D=Heda^Xn·+.
 EaVcc^c\·,*
 >beaZbZciVi^dc·-'
 IgV^c^c\·,(
 8dchjaiVi^dc!Xdbbjc^XVi^dcVcY
gZedgi^c\·,,

 9Zh^\cd[VcVXi^k^in"WVhZYXdhi^c\
model for the City – this is an
automated costing model that extracts
YViV[gdbEVi]lVnh!9ViVldg`hVcY
EnterpriseOne and calculates usage of
the organisation’s internal services.

 9dXjbZciVi^dc·,(

 8d"dgY^cVi^dcd[i]Z'%%,$%-6ccjVa
Business Plan – this plan details the
major projects and activities that the
City will undertake in the coming
year and analyses the organisation’s
capacity and output in relation to place,
key result area and corporate priorities.

 BZVhjgZbZciVcYZkVajVi^dc·,(

Sourcing External Grants
In an effort to make our resources go
further the City also has a centralised
function to coordinate the seeking of funds
from external bodies. In 2006/07 the City
Veea^ZY[dgdkZg(*\gVcihl^i]Vc-%
success rate. This brought in over $2 million
in additional funds for a range of projects.
Some of the funded applications included:
 &*%!%%[dgV8ajW9ZkZadebZci
d[ÄXZg[gdb9ZeVgibZcid[HedgiVcY
Recreation

 =VoVgY^YZci^ÄXVi^dc!g^h`VhhZhhbZci
VcYXdcigda·+*
 :bZg\ZcXnegZeVgVi^dcVcYXdcigda·
,*

 BVcV\ZbZcihnhiZbh·,-
The assessor made recommendations to
give priority to categories where the City
did not score more than 75 per cent.
Employee wellness initiative
The City continued providing employees
with opportunities to participate in health
initiatives, including:
 ;ajkVXX^cVi^dch
 =ZVg^c\iZhih
 :nZh^\]iiZhih
 :g\dcdb^XVhhZhhbZcih
 :beadnZZVhh^hiVcXZegd\gVb
 9^hXdjciZY\nbcVh^jbbZbWZgh]^eVi
City leisure centres

 '*!%%%[dgi]ZNdjgLZaXdbZegd\gVb
from WA Local Government Association
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Setting a goal
The City has set a goal in Safety and
Health. Performance improved over the
2006/07 year. This was demonstrated by
a signiﬁcant 26 per cent reduction in the
incident frequency between the 2003 2006 ﬁscal years.
Equal opportunity in the workplace
The City continued with its approach to
equal opportunity in the work place under
a policy which clearly describes the City’s
expectations of its employees with respect
to discrimination and harassment. The City
has established grievance procedures and
appointed grievance ofﬁcers to ensure any
complaints are dealt with in a timely and
effective manner.
Training and Development
Internal training program
The City’s internal training program
continued its growth in 2006/07. As
part of this, staff members were able to
earn recognised qualiﬁcations. Two key
qualiﬁcations offered were the Certiﬁcate
>K^c7jh^cZhhVcYi]Z9^eadbV^cEgd_ZXi
Management for staff involved in both
‘built’ projects such as community facilities
and roads, and ‘soft’ projects such as the
implementation of IT systems and the
development of community programs.
Online learning program
Since mid-2005, City staff has been able
to access computer skills training online,
both from their desks and from home. This
innovative approach to building computer
skills has continued in 2006/07 and has
also been available to our staff’s family
members.
Induction
The safety induction program for new
employees was improved during the year,
increasing the opportunity for new staff to
start their employment with the City on
the right foot. The program is delivered
entirely by internal trainers and a new
corporate induction is planned for the
coming year.
Awards received
Electronic Lodgement System (ELS)
The Electronic Lodgement System
(ELS) received a commendation in the
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Information Technology Awards for Local
Government from the Federal Minister for
Local Government the Hon Jim Lloyd.
City of Swan wins prestigious WA
Tourism Award
The City of Swan won another prestigious
WA Tourism Award in November 2006 –
the third WA Tourism Award in as many
years. The City received the award in
the Tourism Product Marketing category
[dg^iheVgicZgh]^el^i]i]ZHlVcKVaaZn
Marketing Group in promoting the Swan
KVaaZnidi]ZEZgi]bVg`Zi#
The award was signiﬁcant because
it showed what business and local
government can achieve when they work
together. More than 100 businesses joined
with the City for the project.
Silver medals were also awarded to
the City of Swan, in the categories of
destination promotion and general tourism
services, visitor centres.
Silver award in occupational safety and
health
The City of Swan is one of only 20 local
governments in Western Australia awarded
with a Silver certiﬁcate in occupational
safety and health by the Local Government
Insurance Services (LGIS).
The award, presented to the City on
Tuesday, June 5, followed an audit
conducted by LGIS and the City, in which
the City scored 72 per cent – only three
per cent shy of achieving a gold certiﬁcate.
Only one WA local government currently
holds a gold certiﬁcate.
I]ZVjY^i!XdcYjXiZY^c9ZXZbWZg'%%+!
covered occupational safety and health
policies, planning, training, hazard and
risk identiﬁcation and management,
emergency preparedness and response and
management.
Awards presented
Australia Day citizenship awards
The City of Swan presented its Australia
9VnAdXVa<dkZgcbZci6lVgYhdc?VcjVgn
26, 2007, at a special function at the
Midland Town Hall. The awards recognised
the achievements of the recipients and the
work they have done for the community.
Winners of the City of Swan Premier’s

6jhigVa^V9Vn6Xi^kZ8^i^oZch]^e6lVgYh
in 2006/07 were the Ballajura Youth
8dbbjc^inKZcijgZ[dgi]Z^ghjeedgi
for young people in Ballajura), Swan City
Youth Service (for supporting young people
in Midland), Patricia Williams (for assisting
the Ellenbrook community with cultural
pursuits for young people), John Mogridge
(for his dedication to Indigenous and
youth projects) and Lauren Moore (for her
dedication to basketball in Gidgegannup).
Report on 2006/07 activities (Corporate
Plan)
In 2007 the City of Swan published its
Corporate Plan 2007-2010, which is part of
a suite of plans designed to steer the City
toward the future.
The Corporate Plan is guided by the
Community Plan, and identiﬁes the City’s
aims for the next three years, the City’s
role within the region and the principles
adopted to guide all the City’s activities.
Local laws
Following the gazettal of a new set of
consolidated local laws in February 2005,
no changes were made to the local laws in
2006/07.
The laws govern issues such as the use of
public property and streets, water drainage
affecting neighbouring land, dog restriction
areas, and much more.
Record keeping
The City of Swan, through its policies,
procedures and records management
program, demonstrates a commitment
to sound record keeping practices in
compliance with legislative requirements.
Records are recognised as an important
information resource and it is accepted that
sound record keeping will contribute to the
overall efﬁciency and effectiveness of the
City’s operations.
Internal record keeping audits
A record keeping audit was conducted
for the Operations (Internal) section.
The results were generally of a good
standard, with 4 key actions required to
be addressed. Recommended followup actions include additional training in
record keeping procedures and appropriate
capture of corporate documents into the

electronic document management system
9ViVLdg`h!gZk^Zld[Veegdeg^ViZcZhhd[
i]ZaZkZad[jhV\Zd[9ViVLdg`h[dgheZX^ÄX
staff members, and the capture into the
record keeping system of corporate records
stored on network drives.
Training
The City of Swan continues to provide a
regular record keeping training program to
staff.
A records management induction
is conducted fortnightly to all staff
responsible for creating, collecting and
accessing records during their employment.
End User training is also provided on
9ViVLdg`h!VhlZaaVhgZ[gZh]ZgigV^c^c\
and one-to-one support being available
upon request. A total of 283 staff members
were provided with training during
2006/07 period.
The City will be implementing an on-line
record keeping awareness training program
(RATS) during the second half of 2007.
Document management system
evaluation
Following the post-implementation review
d[9ViVLdg`hWni]Zhd[ilVgZegdk^YZg^c
August 2005, another post-implementation
review has been undertaken by third party
auditors. Several recommendations were
made to the City’s management as areas
for improvement.
Awareness-raising
The City’s “Records Reporter” newsletter
continues to be issued quarterly, with
Issue 8 released to staff in June 2007. The
newsletter aims to keep staff abreast of
any relevant record keeping issues and
system updates as well as providing handy
system hints and tips.
In addition, the City’s Corporate Record
Keeping Guidelines have been made
accessible to staff and it is anticipated
that in early 2008 a new Record Keeping
webpage will be created with the re-vamp
of the City’s intranet providing access to all
information.
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CITY OF SWAN FINANCIALS 2006 – 2007
STATEMENT BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Local Government Act 1995

Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996

The attached ﬁnancial report of the City of Swan being the annual ﬁnancial report and supporting notes and other information for the
ﬁnancial year ended 30 June 2007 are in my opinion properly drawn up to present fairly the ﬁnancial position of the City of Swan at 30
June 2007 and the results of the operations for the ﬁnancial year then ended in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards and
comply with the provisions of the Local Government Act 1995 and the regulations under that Act.

Signed on the 18th day of October, 2007.

M J FOLEY
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
The Financial Report for the 2006/07 ﬁnancial year has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government
Act 1995, the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 including amendments up to June 2007, and the relevant
Australian Accounting Standards. The Statements have been prepared on a full accrual basis, and recognise the value of all infrastructure
assets (roads, drains, footpaths, parks and reserves).
INCOME STATEMENT
REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
The City’s revenue from ordinary activities for the ﬁnancial year was $76.96 million compared to $67.47 million for the previous year. An
increase of 14.06% over the previous year, this was largely due to rate increases of $5.1 million included as General Purpose Funding.
Figure 1 shows the breakdown of revenue by programs. The City’s emphasis on roads and rubbish is reﬂected in the funding
contributions to the three largest segments being General Purpose Funding, Transport and Community Amenities. Rates income ($45.59
million) included in the former segment and sanitation charges ($6.73 million) in the latter. The middle category of Transport is funded
primarily by capital and operating grants.
OPERATING REVENUE BY PROGRAM
J
I

K

H

G

F

A
E
D
C

B

General Purpose Income A - 67.27%

Governance B - 1.13%

Law Order & Public Safety C - 1.83%

Health D - 0.28%

Education and Welfare E - 3.91%

Housing F - 0.12%

Community Amenities G - 9.72%

Recreation & Culture H - 7.31%

Transport I - 5.36%

Economic Services J - 2.70%

Other Property & Services K - 0.37%

The City continues to have strong development outcomes and received $17.46 million, ($ 19.54 million in 2005/06) of non-cash
infrastructure assets (i.e. roads, drains, footpaths and parks) from developers of new land areas. The value of these contributions are
shown as non-operating income in the Income Statement. The City takes on the responsibility for the maintenance of these assets, and
these contributions are taken into account in the City’s asset register.
Analysis of the Operating Revenue by nature and type shows that the major source of revenue in 2006/07 was from rates levied, which
amounted to $45.59 million, and was $0.3 million more than the budget. This increase was due to increase in the value of properties
subject to the rate levy, resulting from a combination of growth and revaluation.
The next main source of revenue was the sanitation charges which at $6.73 million was $0.8 million more than the previous year
although slightly below budget.
Government grants and subsidies for operating and capital expenses continued to be important sources of income for the City in
2006/07. The City received $9.69 million during the year, compared with $8.45 million the previous year. Of the amount received, $6.38
million was for operating activities and $3.30 million for capital projects.
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OPERATING REVENUE BY NATURE OR TYPE
F

G

E
D
C
A

B

Rate Levies A - 59.24%

Sanitation Charges B - 8.75%

Fees & Charges C - 12.75%

Grants & Subsidies-Operating D - 8.30%

Contrib.Reimbursements &Donations E - 3.66%

Interest Earnings F - 3.25%

Other Revenue G - 4.05%

EXPENSES FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
The Transport Program which includes the maintenance of more than 1,275 kilometres of roads, consumed 34.20 % or $ 25.17 million
of the operating budget was the source of greatest expenditure for the year. The increase in program expenses occurred due to a $.5
million increase for depreciation charges, for roads and other infrastructure assets; which at $18.2 million was the largest component of
the transport program expenses.
The next substantial program, Recreation & Culture, consumed 28.31% or $ 20.84 million of expenditure. The major components of this
program are the operations of Swan Park Recreation Centre, Altone Park Recreation Centre, Ballajura Aquatic Centre and the six libraries,
and the maintenance of the different Parks and Reserves.
OPERATING EXPENDITURE BY PROGRAM

J

K

A

B

C
D
E

I
F

G

H
General Purpose Income A - 1.73%

Governance B - 7.34%

Law Order & Public Safety C - 4.02%

Health D - 1.29%

Education and Welfare E - 6.14%

Housing F - 0.11%

Community Amenities G - 13.07%

Recreation & Culture H - 28.31%

Transport I - 34.20%

Economic Services J - 3.57%

Other Property & Services K - 0.22%

Analysis of expenditure by nature and type indicates that Employee Costs at $30.51 million accounted for 41.45% of total operating
costs. This represents an increase of $2.15 million over the previous year.
Depreciation of non-current assets, which amounted to $21.59 million or 29.33 % of total expenses, was the second largest area of
expense and increased by 4% over the previous year. This increase was $2.9 million above budget and shows the increased worth of the
City.
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OPERATING EXPENDITURE BY NATURE OR TYPE
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Employee Costs A - 41.45%

Materials & Contracts B - 24.94%

Utilities C - 2.97%

Depreciation on Non-Current Assets D - 29.33%

Interest Expenses E - 0.64%

Other Expenditure F - 0.66%

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
The City received $80.63 million during 2006/07 from operating activities, an increase of $12.4 million compared to the previous year.
The main sources of cash were rates and fees & charges which increased by $9 million over the previous year; a good result which
shows that almost all such payments invoiced during the year were collected. Income from other business activities showed marginal
increases
Payments for operating activities in 2006/07 totalled $54.2 million, an increase of $4.1 million compared to the previous year. Employee
costs rose by $2 million, materials & contracts increased by $.79 million
The net cash provided by operating activities was $26.39 million, an increase of $8.35 million over the prior period.
The net cash used in 2006/07 to invest in City assets (plant, equipment, construction of roads and buildings, etc) was $23.18 million
compared to $13.69 million the previous year. Capital grants made to the City increased by $.56 million. The City’s capital works program
was $4.18 million below budget, however an increase of $8.08 million over the previous year. The increase can be attributed to
completion of major building projects during the year, notably the Ellenbrook Library Building Project $4.6million.
The overall effect of all activities of the City during 2006/07 was an increase in the cash balance by $6.27 million to $24.27 million.
STATEMENT OF RATING INFORMATION
The Local Government Act 1995 allows local governments to adopt differential rates, and the City of Swan has levied differential rates for
a number of years. This has been adopted to allow an equitable basis of levying rates on the diverse types of rateable properties in the
Municipality.
Properties in the urban suburbs of the Municipality have rates based on the Gross Rental Values (GRVs) of the properties as determined
by the Valuer General once every three years. The last revaluation was in 2005/06. The City of Swan increased Gross Rental Value of
differential rates by approximately 5% for the 2006/2007 ﬁnancial year.
Properties in the rural areas have rates based on the Unimproved Values (UVs) of the properties as determined by the Valuer General
each year. The General Rural rate in the dollar is the base rate for rural properties. Concessional rates are set for Urban Farmland and
Swan Valley Farmland, with a premium rate for Special Areas and Landscape zones.
The total rates levied in 2006/07 was $44.80 million, slightly above the budget of $44.53 million.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
DEBT COSTS TO RATES INCOME
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The net annual growth of rate revenue compared with loan repayments each year.
DEBT SERVICING RATIO – Debt service costs/operating revenue

%

6

4

2

0
1999/00 2000/01 2001/02 2002/03 2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07

Year
Measures the percentage of total operating revenue allocated to the repayment of loans.

60 | Annual report 2006 – 2007

PRINCIPAL OUTSTANDING
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Compares total operating revenue over the current and previous ﬁnancial years.
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INCOME STATEMENT (BY PROGRAM) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
Budget ($)
2006/07

Description
Reference

Notes

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

24(a)

51,770,232

45,300,214

Revenue from Ordinary Activities
50,505,683
382,730
1,239,990
247,500
2,717,552
90,000

General Purpose Income
Governance
Law Order & Public Safety
Health
Education and Welfare
Housing

871,184

949,830

1,406,166

1,328,746

218,267

233,114

3,013,041

2,490,651

90,799

96,864

7,358,660

Community Amenities

7,482,741

6,429,444

4,531,626

Recreation & Culture

5,628,036

4,624,564

1,649,168

Transport

4,124,164

4,012,063

2,058,690

Economic Services

2,076,629

1,754,603

283,295

253,629

76,964,554

67,473,722

123,000
70,904,599

Other Property & Services
Sub-Total revenue

3(a)

Expenses from Ordinary Activities
(1,689,660)
(10,914,123)
(2,880,566)
(764,885)
(4,999,298)
(68,500)
(8,285,106)
(18,812,726)
(21,030,499)
(2,733,035)
(123,000)
(72,301,398)
(1,396,799)

General Purpose Funding

(1,270,330)

(934,003)

Governance

(5,404,037)

(9,710,349)

Law Order & Public Safety

(2,958,639)

(2,649,162)

Health
Education and Welfare
Housing

(950,245)

(801,732)

(4,518,650)

(4,125,048)

(77,749)

-

(9,622,694)

(7,684,725)

Recreation & Culture

(20,841,592)

(17,879,633)

Transport

(25,174,954)

(24,758,783)

(2,629,906)

(1,589,693)

Community Amenities

Economic Services

(159,665)

1,301,651

Sub-Total expenses

Other Property & Services
3(a)

(73,608,462)

(68,831,477)

Operating surplus / (deﬁcit)

3(a)

3,356,092

(1,357,755)

ADD: Non- operating activities
-

General Purpose Funding

-

-

-

Governance

-

(150)

-

Law Order & Public Safety

-

-

-

Health

-

60,316

-

Education and Welfare

-

-

-

Housing

-

-

213,240
2,113,050

Community Amenities
Recreation & Culture
Transport

-

Economic Services

-

Other Property & Services

2,326,290
929,491

1,664,124
21,186,063

-

-

2,410,490

-

Sub-Total Non- operating activities

23,559,855

22,910,353

NET RESULT

26,915,946

21,552,598

*This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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665,449
20,483,916
19(b)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 JUNE 2007
Description
Reference

Notes

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

4

24,273,715

18,002,326

Trade and other receivables

5

6,248,374

7,140,530

Prepayments

6

47,662

42,370

Inventory

7

241,245

308,895

30,810,996

25,494,120

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short term borrowings

9

1,035,040

899,238

Trade and other payables

10

4,806,703

5,335,048

Income in advance

11

2,946,829

2,177,065

Provisions

12

4,758,995

4,244,095

Total current liabilities

13,547,567

12,655,446

NET CURRENT ASSETS

17,263,429

12,838,674

5

2,672,127

1,537,543

8

520,085,085

521,496,663

13

13,395,805

10,985,315

536,153,017

534,019,521

9

9,320,759

6,814,136

Trade and other payables

10

1,831,535

1,663,112

Provisions

12

977,549

920,060

12,129,843

9,397,308

541,286,603

537,460,889

441,396,284

415,892,410

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables
Property, plant and equipment
Investments
Total non-current assets
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term borrowings

Total non-current liabilities
NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus
Asset Revaluation Reserve

14b

88,197,231

111,287,462

Cash Backed Reserves

14a

11,693,089

10,281,017

541,286,603

537,460,889

TOTAL EQUITY
*This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
Description
Reference

Notes

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

415,892,410

397,458,072

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
Opening balance
Net result
Trf (to) / from reserves

3a

26,915,946

21,552,597

14a

(1,412,072)

(3,118,259)

441,396,284

415,892,410

111,287,462

110,180,395

Balance at end of the year
ASSET REVALUATION RESERVE
Balance at beginning of year
Revaluation of non-current assets

14b

Revaluation of investment in EMRC
Balance at end of the year

(23,090,232)

(733,761)

-

1,840,830

88,197,230

111,287,462

10,281,017

7,162,758

CASH BACKED RESERVES
Opening balance
Trf (to) / from Acc. Surplus
Balance at end of the year
TOTAL EQUITY
This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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14a

1,412,072

3,118,259

11,693,089

10,281,017

541,286,603

537,460,889

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
Budget ($)
2006/07

Description
Reference

Notes

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

46,441,577

40,535,748

6,737,501

5,899,007

10,089,287

6,968,575

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
45,971,325

Rates levies

6,703,110

Sanitation charges

8,601,206

Fees & charges

1,631,564

Interest earned

2,502,344

1,670,599

1,539,271

Contributions & reimbursements

3,023,889

3,309,803

6,998,736

Operating grants & subsidies

6,719,083

5,588,250

186,596
71,631,808

All other revenue

3,370,984

2,093,259

GST inﬂow

1,748,007

2,144,216

80,632,672

68,209,457

(18,816,363)

(18,019,918)

Total receipts
Payments

(20,990,247)

Materials & contracts

(1,140,078)

Donations, contributions & Grants

(494,078)

(351,383)

(1,688,350)

Utility charges

(2,188,770)

(1,644,141)

Employee costs

(29,942,731)

(27,918,649)

(467,927)

(536,725)

(2,328,945)

(1,690,864)

(54,238,814)

(50,161,680)

21(b)

26,393,858

18,047,777

(27,998,044)
(527,480)
(52,344,199)
19,287,609

Interest payments
GST outﬂow
Total payments
Net cash from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

3,500,000

Proceeds from loans

9

3,565,000

-

(943,920)

Repayment of loans

9

(922,573)

(1,003,154)

-

Self supporting loans - Repayments

9

155,815

422,015

-

Self supporting loans – New Loans

9

(65,000)

-

2,556,080

Town Planning Scheme 14
Net cash used in ﬁnancing activities

330,692

378,557

(3,063,934)

(202,582)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2,350,185

Capital grants & subsidies

2,163,120

Proceeds from sale of ﬁxed assets

-

Materials Recovery Facility

3,419,909

2,858,775

2f1

1,387,389

2,178,908

-

(1,178,500)

-

(15,805,892)

Purchase / construction of infrastructure

(14,268,997)

(12,134,277)

(15,191,680)

Purchase / construction of capital assets

(12,546,204)

(6,597,636)

(23,186,403)

(13,694,230)

6,271,389

4,150,966

18,002,326

13,851,360

24,273,715

18,002,326

(26,484,267)

Net cash used in investing activities

(4,640,578)

Net increase (decrease) in cash held

16,438,501

Cash at the beginning of the year

11,797,923

CASH AT THE END OF THE YEAR

21(c)

21(a)

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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RATE SETTING STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
Budget ($)
2006/07

Description
Reference

Notes

Actual ($)
2006/07

OPERATING REVENUE
6,813,660

Sanitation charges

6,737,501

8,500,766

Other fees and charges

9,813,477

6,998,736

Operating grants and subsidies

6,385,635

1,527,716

Contributions and reimbursements

2,814,779

1,654,130

Interest earnings

2,502,344

Other receipts

3,115,013

164,596
25,659,604

Sub-Total - operating revenue

31,368,749

OPERATING EXPENSE
(20,396,201)

Materials and contracts

(3,649,604)

Other payments

(1,186,430)

Utility charges

(527,480)
(27,882,464)
(18,659,219)

Interest expense
Employee costs
Depreciation

(18,358,033)
(485,078)
(2,188,770)
(470,960)
(30,513,425)
(21,592,196)

(72,301,398)

Sub-Total operating expense

(73,608,462)

(46,641,794)

Net cash from / (on) operating activities

(42,239,713)

ADD:
2,350,120

Capital grants and subsidies

3,306,327

2,163,185

Proceeds from sale of assets

1,387,389

18,659,219

Depreciation written back

21,592,196

LESS: Capital Expenditure
(15,191,680)

Purchase construction of infrastructure

(14,268,997)

(15,805,892)

Purchase construction of other assets

(12,546,204)

LESS:
(943,920)

Repayment of loans

(922,573)

(8,135,820)

Transfers to reserves

(7,594,102)

3,500,000

Proceeds from loans

3,565,000

5,913,750

Transfers from reserves

6,182,030

ADD: Funding Sources

500,000
10,430,895
(2,019,163)
1,420,694
(45,221,100)

Movement in Employee Provisions

572,389

Self Supporting Loans Repayment

155,816

Self Supporting Loans - New Loans
Opening funds
Less Closing funds

(11,390,588)

Net

(3,356,093)

SHORTFALL TO BE MADE UP FROM RATES

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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(65,000)
6,670,224

(45,595,806)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The signiﬁcant policies which have been adopted in the preparation of these ﬁnancial statements are:
a) The Local Government Reporting Entity
The ﬁnancial statements forming this report have been prepared on the basis of two funds (Municipal and Trust Funds). Monies held in
the Trust Fund have been excluded from the ﬁnancial statements, but a separate statement of those monies appears at Note 17 to these
ﬁnancial statements.
b) Basis of Accounting
The General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared to comply with applicable Australian Accounting Standards, the Local
Government Act 1995 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 (incorporating amendments to 30 June
2007). They have been prepared on the accrual basis under the convention of historical cost accounting with the exception of the
revaluation of non-current assets where stated.
c) Compliance with IFRSs
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) form the basis of Australian Standards adopted by the AASB, being AIFRSs. The
ﬁnancial report of the Regional Council complies with IFRSs and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board
except as follows:
- AIFRS include speciﬁc provisions relating to not-for-proﬁt entities. These are not included in IFRSs.
- Australian Accounting Standard AAS27 “Financial Reporting by Local Governments’ also applies and there in no equivalent standard
in IFRSs.
- The Principal areas of non-compliance with IFRSs include:
- The recognition of non-reciprocal revenue:
- The deﬁnition of value in use of the purposes of estimating the recoverable amount of impaired assets; and
- The offsetting of asset revaluation increments and decrements on a class of asset basis rather than individual asset basis.
Australian Accounting Standards and interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective have not been
adopted by the Council for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2007.
Council is of the view the new standards or amendments will have no direct impact on the amounts included in the ﬁnancial report
although the changes may impact upon the way in which some ﬁnancial information is disclosed.
d) Critical Accounting Estimates
The preparation of a ﬁnancial report in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are base on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The results of this experience and other factors combine to form the basis of making judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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e) Classiﬁcation and Capitalisation of Non-Current Assets
Non-Current Assets are reported at cost except infrastructure assets and investments which are reported at independent or Council
valuation. Any surplus on revaluation is credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve and excluded from the operating statement.
There is no policy on regular revaluation, except for infrastructure assets which are revalued every year.
Any gain or loss on disposal of assets is determined as the difference between the written down value of the asset at the time of
disposal and the proceeds from disposal and is included in the operating results in the year of disposal.
Non-Current Assets are capitalised if they exceed the following Council thresholds:
Land and Buildings
$0
Furniture and Equipment
$1,000
Plant and Equipment
$2,000
Infrastructure
$20,000
Software
$20,000
f) Depreciation of Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment, including buildings but excluding freehold land are depreciated over their estimated useful lives
on a straight line basis using rates which are reviewed each reporting period. Major depreciation periods are:
Buildings

50 years

Furniture & Equipment

3 to 10 years

Plant & Equipment

3 to 10 years

Motor vehicle sedans are generally changed over at 60,000 KMs or 2 years, whichever is the earlier date and are depreciated
accordingly. However, Council monitors market factors and may change the vehicles at a more economical time period.
Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed assets, from the time an asset is completed
and held ready for use.
Infrastructure Assets
Infrastructure assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives on a straight line basis using rates which are reviewed each
reporting period. Major depreciation periods are:
Roads

30 years

Drainage

75 years

Footpaths

50 years

Parks and Reserves

25 years

Other Infrastructure

25 years

Infrastructure assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed assets, from the time an asset is
completed and held ready for use. In accordance with the Local Government (Financial Management Regulations) 1996 section 16, ‘land
under roads’ has not been recognised as an asset in the balance sheet.
g) Employee Entitlements
Provision is made for beneﬁts accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, long service leave, time in lieu
leave and rostered day off leave when it is probable that settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably.
Provision is made in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, time in lieu leave and rostered day off leave expected to be settled
within 12 months are measured at their nominal values using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.
Provision is made in respect of other employee beneﬁts which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are measured as the
present value of the estimated future cash outﬂows to be made by the employer in respect of services provided by employees up to
reporting date.
Liabilities for employee entitlements which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are discounted using the rates attaching to
national government securities at balance date, which most closely match the terms of maturity of the related liabilities.
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h) Investments
All investments, except as disclosed in Note 13 are made in accordance with the Trustees Act and Council’s policy on investment and
surplus funds. Investments are valued at the lower of cost and market value. Interest revenues on these investments are recognised as
they accrue.
i) Bad and Doubtful Debts
The ﬁnancial statements do not make any provision for recalcitrant rate and Town Planning Scheme debtors as these are secured over
the property. Provision for other bad and doubtful debts is made when considered necessary. It is expected that some small amounts will
be unrecoverable during the year and these have been written off by Council.
j) Leases
The City’s rights and obligations under ﬁnance leases, which are leases that effectively transfer to the City all of the risks and beneﬁts
incident to ownership of the leased items, are initially recognised as assets and liabilities equal in amount to the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The assets are disclosed as plant and equipment under lease, and are amortised to expense over the period
during which the City is expected to beneﬁt from use of the leased assets. Minimum lease payments are allocated between interest
expense and reduction of the lease liability, according to the interest rate implicit in the lease.
Lease liabilities are allocated between current and non-current components. The principal component of lease payments due on or
before the end of the succeeding year is disclosed as a current liability and the remainder of the lease is disclosed as a non-current
liability.
With operating leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and beneﬁts incidental to ownership of the leased
items, lease payments are expensed over the lease term.
k) Joint Venture
The City’s interest in a joint venture has been recognised in the ﬁnancial statements by including its share of any assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses of the joint venture within the relevant items reported in the balance sheet and income statement. Information
regarding the joint venture is disclosed in Note 20.
l) Rates, Grants, Donations and Other Contributions
The rating and reporting periods coincide. Control over assets acquired from rates in the form of sundry debtors and cash is obtained
when rates are levied.
Grants, donations and other contributions are recognised as revenues when the City obtains control over the assets comprising the
contributions. Control over granted assets is normally obtained upon their receipt or upon prior notiﬁcation that a grant has been
secured. The timing of commencement of control depends upon the arrangements that exist between the grantor and the City.
Contributions not received over which the City has control are recognised as receivable.
Contributions are recognised as revenues during the reporting period, where they are obtained on the condition that they are expended
in a particular manner or used over a particular period.
m) Share of Assets in Other Entities
The City’s interest in other entities has been recognised in the ﬁnancial statement as the relevant share of the book value of the net
assets of the respective entity as disclosed in Note 19.
n) Trade and Other Receivables
Trade receivables, which generally have 30 - 90 day terms, are recognised in the balance sheet less any allowance for uncollectible
amounts.
Collectibility of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are known to be uncollectible are written off when
identiﬁed. An allowance for doubtful debts is raised when there is objective evidence that they will not be collectible.
o) Trade and Other Payables
Trade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when the Council becomes obliged to make payments resulting from the
purchase of goods and services or other contractual arrangements.
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p) Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings
All Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs.
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities that are yield related are included as part of the carrying amount of the loans
and borrowings.
Borrowings are classiﬁed as current liabilities unless the Council has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date.
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred.
q) Bonds Payable
Bonds payable are recognised when Council becomes obliged to make future payments subject to a speciﬁc condition(s) being adhered
to by the payee.
r) Goods and Services Tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except:
i. Where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Ofﬁce, it is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense; or
ii. For receivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of GST.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Ofﬁce is included as part of receivables or payables.
s) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
t) Revaluation of non-current assets
Certain asset classes may be revalued on a regular basis such that the carrying values are not materially different from fair value. For
infrastructure and other asset classes where no active market exists, fair value is determined to be the current replacement cost of an
asset less, where applicable, accumulated depreciation calculated on a basis to reﬂect the already consumed or expired future economic
beneﬁts.
u) Impairment
In accordance with Australian Accounting Standards the City’s assets, other than inventories, are assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication they may be impaired.
Where such an indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset is made in accordance with AASB 136 (Impairment
of Assets) and appropriate adjustments made.
An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.
v) Rounding
All amounts have been rounded to the nearest dollar. This may result in minor variations between individual schedules.
w) Comparatives
Comparative ﬁgures (prior years) are, where appropriate, reclassiﬁed so as to be comparable with the ﬁgures presented for the current
ﬁnancial year.
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Budget ($)
2006/07

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

3,306,624

2,777,056

7,646

4,364

367,310

424,086

2. CITY FUNCTIONS/ACTIVITIES BY PROGRAM
2 (A)

GRANTS RECEIVED
Program Description

3,223,183
366,110
500

General Purpose Funding
Governance
Law, Order and Public Safety
Health

-

-

2,198,026

1,862,083

2,304,508

Education and Welfare

85,000

Community Amenities

35,612

31,873

337,630

Recreation and Culture

640,251

472,537

2,903,390

2,543,268

2,183,050
848,940
9,348,921
2 (B)

Transport
Economic Services
Total Grants

233,102

341,759

9,691,962

8,457,026

311,299

349,303

FEES AND CHARGES
Program Description

325,000
-

General Purpose Funding
Governance

927

733

885,112

820,638

735,580

Law, Order and Public Safety

203,000

Health

200,332

193,598

189,288

Education and Welfare

203,495

193,633

83,199

87,514

90,000

Housing

7,273,660

Community Amenities

7,444,283

6,376,938

4,351,906

Recreation and Culture

4,640,946

4,302,101

819,242
1,206,750
120,000
15,314,426

Transport
Economic Services
Other Property and Services
Total Fees & Charges

821,608

806,289

1,681,670

1,364,307

278,105

248,308

16,550,976

14,743,362

Notes 2(C) to 2(F) provides additional information about infrastructure, property, plant and equipment which has been disclosed in Note 8. These notes do not provide details of
any other Council asset (including Work in Progress) which are shown elsewhere in this annual report.

2 (C)

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE
Program Description

771,467
-

Governance
Law, Order and Public Safety

9,065

Health

1,864

Education and Welfare

-

606,828

-

-

-9,055
7,091

2,836

-

-

101,845

Community Amenities

82,880

101,489

2,146,798

Recreation and Culture

2,529,136

2,266,736

18,285,908

17,788,528

2,625

-

15,628,180

Housing

684,557

Transport

-

Economic Services

-

Other Property and Services

18,659,219

Total Depreciation

-

-

21,592,196

20,775,473
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Budget ($)
2006/07
2 (D)

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

4,807,221

5,380,629

NON-CASH CONTRIBUTIONS
Program Description
Community Amenities
Recreation and Culture
Transport
Non-cash contributions

2 (E)
2 (E1)

119,043

1,240,020

12,541,643

12,926,903

17,467,907

19,547,552

-

23,014,415

475,374

292,100

2,265,591

2,344,268

683,628

682,032

6,711,587

6,259,583

2,068

-

6,021,642

4,696,396

ASSETS HELD
ASSETS HELD - GROSS ASSET VALUE
Program Description
General Purpose Funding
Governance
Law, Order and Public Safety
Health
Education and Welfare
Housing
Community Amenities
Recreation and Culture
Transport
Economic Services
Other Property and Services
Total Gross Asset Value

2 (E2)

95,980,366

85,854,907

417,431,267

406,815,097

2,416,777

252,790

23,743,667

22,154,133

555,731,968

552,365,720

ASSETS HELD - ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Program Description
General Purpose Funding
Governance
Law, Order and Public Safety
Health
Education and Welfare
Housing

467,309
127,002

1,181,877

1,206,912

177,455

162,672

1,543,395

1,407,196

-

-

Community Amenities

2,594,450

2,430,294

Recreation and Culture

19,650,444

17,149,427

4,609,856

3,626,552

25,689

8,701

Transport
Economic Services
Other Property and Services
Total Accumulated Depreciation
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151,039

6,355,876

5,405,447

36,290,081

31,991,511

Budget ($)
2006/07
2 (E3)

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

-

22,547,106

ASSETS HELD - NET BOOK VALUE
Program Description
General Purpose Funding
Governance
Law, Order and Public Safety
Health
Education and Welfare
Housing

506,172

519,360

5,168,192

4,852,387

2,068

-

3,427,193

2,266,102

Recreation and Culture

76,329,923

68,705,480

412,821,411

403,188,546

Economic Services

2,391,088

244,089

17,387,791

16,748,686

519,441,888

520,374,20

18,727

40,455

Law, Order and Public Safety

90,964

152,409

Health

15,682

49,000

Education and Welfare

47,682

105,909

Community Amenities

215,023

246,205

Recreation and Culture

58,925

20,240

789,932

1,390,645

30,091

-

Other Property and Services
Net Book Value

2 (F1)

165,098
1,137,356

Community Amenities
Transport

2 (F)

324,335
1,083,714

DISPOSED ASSETS
DISPOSED ASSETS - PROCEEDS FROM SALE
Program Description
Governance

Transport
Economic Services
Other Property and Services
Total Proceeds from Sale of Assets
2 (F2)

120,364

174,045

1,387,389

2,178,909

20,645

49,814

144,237

174,343

DISPOSED ASSETS - WRITTEN DOWN VALUE
Program Description
Governance
Law, Order and Public Safety
Health

17,931

58,233

Education and Welfare

56,728

109,821

Community Amenities

142,758

251,305

Recreation and Culture

57,532

30,332

418,299

799,102

33,504

-

120,624

201,933

1,012,258

1,674,883

Transport
Economic Services
Other Property and Services
Written Down Value on Sale of Assets
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Budget ($)
2006/07
2 (F3)

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

(1,918)

(9,359)

DISPOSED ASSETS NET GAINS / (LOSS)
Program Description
Governance
Law, Order and Public Safety

(53,274)

(21,934)

Health

(2,250)

(9,233)

Education and Welfare

(9,046)

(3,912)

Community Amenities

72,265

(5,100)

Recreation and Culture

1,393

(10,092)

371,633

591,543

(3,414)

-

(260)

(27,888)

375,131

504,025

45,595,806

40,505,892

Transport
Economic Services
Other Property and Services
Net Gains / (Loss) on Sale of Asset
3. OPERATING REVENUES & EXPENSES
3 (A)

INCOME STATEMENT (BY NATURE OR TYPE)
Revenue from Ordinary Activities

45,221,100

Rate Levies

6,813,660

Sanitation charges

6,737,501

5,899,007

8,500,766

Fees & charges

9,813,476

8,844,355

6,998,736

Operating grants & subsidies

6,385,635

5,588,250

1,527,716

Contributions and reimbursements

2,814,779

3,309,803

1,654,130

Interest earnings 3(b)

2,502,344

1,670,599

164,596
70,880,704

Other revenue
Sub-Total revenue

3,115,013

1,655,816

76,964,554

67,473,722

(18,358,033)

(17,166,440)

(485,078)

(351,383)

(2,188,770)

(1,644,141)

(470,960)

(536,725)

Expenses from Ordinary Activities
(21,582,631)

Materials & contracts

(1,654,992)

Subsidies & donations

(1,994,612)
(527,480)

Utility charges
Interest expense

(27,882,464)

Employee costs

(30,513,425)

(28,357,316)

(18,659,219)

Depreciation

(21,592,196)

(20,775,473)

(73,608,462)

(68,831,478)

3,356,092

(1,357,756)

3,306,327

2,858,775

(72,301,398)
(1,420,694)

Sub-Total expenses
Operating surplus / (deﬁcit)
ADD: Non- operating activities

2,350,185

Capital grants & subsidies

-

Contributions from developers 3(d)

17,467,907

19,547,552

-

Proﬁt / (Loss) on disposal of assets

375,131

504,026

-

Proﬁt / (Loss) on investment 19(b)

2,350,185
929,491
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2,410,490

-

Sub-Total Non- operating activities

23,559,855

22,910,353

NET RESULT

26,915,946

21,552,597

Budget ($)
2006/07
3 (B)
476,450
1,177,680
1,654,130
3 (C)

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

INVESTMENT EARNINGS
Reserve Fund
Municipal Fund
Total Investment Earnings

470,960

445,108

2,031,384

1,225,491

2,502,344

1,670,599

NET CURRENT ASSET POSITION

The net current asset position balance carried forward from the previous ﬁnancial year after adjustment for restricted assets for the purpose of the 2006/07 budget was
$10,430,895. The actual net current asset position balance shown in the audited ﬁnancial report as at 30th June 2006 and after adjustment for restricted assets was $6,670,224.

3 (D)

NON CASH CONTRIBUTIONS

Non cash contributions are disclosed separately as non-operating revenue in the Income Statement to bring to account infrastructure assets and land acquired from developers.
The value of non cash contributions is detailed below. No budget provision was made for these non cash contributions in the 2006/07 budget.

Nature & Type
Buildings

-

150,000

11,235,390

11,704,029

Drainage

4,807,221

5,380,629

Footpaths

1,306,253

1,222,874

119,043

1,090,020

17,467,907

19,547,552

Restricted Cash and Investments

13,524,524

11,944,129

Unrestricted Cash and Investments

10,749,091

6,058,196

24,273,715

18,002,325

Roads

Parks & Reserves (& merged improvements)
Total
4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City holds the following cash backed reserves which are restricted by policy, regulation or other external imposed requirements. Additional information about the reserve
fund accounts and restricted contributions are shown in Note 14.

Cash Backed Reserve Funds
Aged Persons Accommodation
Aged Services Asset Replacement

48,951

33,497

46,254

255,181

Midland District Drainage

1,809,578

880,677

General Insurance

1,086,970

834,712

706,696

649,161

Plant & Equipment

1,772,262

1,188,915

Waste Management

2,638,022

4,062,103

775,723

-

Gravel Pit Rehabilitation

City Asset Replacement Reserve
Ellenbrook Community Facilities

139,410

860,482

Vale Community Reserve

930,115

173,680

Hazelmere / Guildford Drainage

250,861

146,155
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Budget ($)
2006/07

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

Restricted Contributions
Midland Brick Trust Fund

35,275

35,275

Footpath Contributions

88,024

127,714

1,040,084

640,734

26,158

26,158

285,979
12,727

322,028
44,545

-

-

11,693,089

10,281,017

Roadwork Contributions
Drainage Contributions
Public Open Space Contributions
Malaga Parking
Bellevue Parking
Sub-Total - Cash backed Reserves
Sundry Bonds and Other Deposits

1,831,535

1,663,112

13,524,624

11,944,129

Unrestricted

10,749,091

6,058,196

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24,273,715

18,002,325

Rates & ESL Receivables

2,078,224

2,778,721

Sundry Debtors

3,028,903

3,486,739

853,655

272,716

Self Supporting Loans Receivable

133,042

132,480

Town Planning Scheme 14

209,646

540,338

6,303,470

7,210,994

Total Restricted Cash and Investments
The City also has other ‘unrestricted’ funds which have arisen from normal business operations.

5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Current Receivables

ATO - Input Tax Claimable (Net)

Sub-Total Current Receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts
Total Current Receivables

(55,096)

(70,464)

6,248,374

7,140,530

790,785

743,325

1,200,000

21,500

Non Current Receivables
Pensioner Deferred Rates
City of Wanneroo-MRF
Self Supporting Loans Receivable

681,342

772,718

Total Non Current Receivables

2,672,127

1,537,543

Total Receivables

8,920,501

8,678,073

Motor Vehicle Registration

47,662

42,370

Total Prepayments

47,662

42,370

Materials at Cost

241,245

308,895

Total Inventory

241,245

308,895

6. PREPAYMENTS

7. INVENTORY
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE

OPENING NET BOOK VALUE

Buildings

Computer

Furniture

Plant

Vehicles

At Cost

At Cost

At Cost

At Cost

At Cost

Other
Assets
At Cost

43,171,459

3,300,531

404,579

1,793,323

7,240,160

39,936

51,461,778

5,557,751

2,382,412

5,114,123

11,924,803

40,862

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,912,832

750,587

501,634

754,728

3,516,883

-

-

-

-

-

-

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT
Opening Balance @
Cost
Valuation
Payments for purch / constn
of Capital
of Infrastructure
Contributed assets

-

-

-

-

-

-

Disposal of assets

-

(15,879)

(4,380)

(547,887)

(2,396,906)

-

Work In Progress Movement

-

-

-

-

-

-

Change in practice

-

-

-

459,472

(459,472)

-

Adjustment / revaluation

-

-

-

-

-

-

58,374,610

6,292,459

2,879,666

5,780,436

12,585,308

40,862

AD -Opening Balance

(8,290,320)

(2,257,220)

(1,977,833)

(3,320,800)

(4,684,643)

(926)

Depreciation Expense

(1,101,656)

(666,059)

(161,904)

(755,499)

(2,141,159)

-

AD - Disposal of assets

-

15,879

1,168

445,366

1,490,381

-

AD - Change in practice

-

-

-

(171,240)

171,240

-

-

GCA - Closing Balance

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

-

-

-

-

-

AD Closing Balance

AD - Revaluation

(9,391,976) (2,907,400)

(2,138,569)

(3,802,173)

(5,164,181)

(926)

CLOSING NET BOOK VALUE

48,982,634

741,097

1,978,263

7,421,127

39,936

3,385,059

a) Road infrastructure assets were revalued by Council as at 30 June 2007 to a depreciated current replacement cost of $382.39 million.
The valuation was made on the basis of the depreciated replacement cost method. The assets were previously revalued by Council as at
30 June 2006. This resulted in a decrease to the asset value of $30.05 million which has been debited to the asset revaluation reserve.
b) Drainage infrastructure assets were revalued by Council as at 30 June 2007 to a depreciated current replacement cost of $176.31
million. The valuation was made on the basis of the depreciated replacement cost method. The assets were previously revalued
by Council as at 30 June 2006. This resulted in an increase to the asset value of $5.56 million which has been credited to the asset
revaluation reserve.
c) Footpath infrastructure assets were revalued by Council as at 30 June 2007 to a depreciated current replacement cost of $24.24
million. The valuation was made on the basis of the depreciated replacement cost method. The assets were previously revalued
by Council as at 30 June 2006. This resulted in an increase to the asset value of $1.39 million which has been credited to the asset
revaluation reserve.
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Other
Infrastruct
At Cost

Parks &
Reserves
At Cost

Land

Work In
Progress
At Cost

Roads
Infrastruct
At Valuation

Drainage
Infrastruct
At Valuation

Footpaths
Infrastruct
At Valuation

TOTAL

At Cost

6,203,034

25,423,813

14,556,155

1,122,455 284,630,954

114,378,838

19,231,427

521,496,663

8,339,396

34,747,221

14,556,155

1,122,455

-

-

-

135,246,956

-

-

-

-

284,630,954

114,378,838

19,231,427

418,241,219

588,797

3,339,563

-

-

-

-

-

16,365,024

-

-

-

-

9,571,377

421,539

936,518

10,929,434

-

119,043

-

-

11,235,390

4,807,221

1,306,253

17,467,907

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(2,965,052)

-

-

-

(479,257)

-

-

-

(479,257)

2,143,795

(21,412)

-

-

(2,122,383)

-

-

-

-

-

-

- (42,537,008)

3,289,455

816,488

(38,431,065)

11,071,988

38,184,415

14,556,155

643,198 260,778,330

122,897,053

22,290,686

556,375,166

(2,136,362)

(9,323,408)

-

-

-

-

-

(31,991,512)

(367,486)

(1,017,915)

-

- (12,525,687)

(2,272,848)

(581,984)

(21,592,197)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,952,794

(47,568)

7,883

-

-

39,685

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

12,486,002

2,272,848

581,984

15,340,834

(2,551,416) (10,333,440)

-

-

-

-

-

(36,290,081)

643,198 260,778,330

122,897,053

22,290,686

520,085,085

8,520,572

27,850,975

14,556,155
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Budget ($)
2006/07

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

9. BORROWINGS
LOAN LIABILITIES
Current
Loan Liability (City of Swan)

901,998

766,758

Loan Liability (Self Supporting)

133,042

132,480

1,035,040

899,238

8,639,419

6,041,417

Non- Current
Loan Liability (City of Swan)
Loan Liability (Self Supporting)

681,340

772,718

9,320,759

6,814,136

RECONCILIATION OF LOAN LIABILITIES
City of Swan
6,808,178

Opening balance

6,808,178

7,398,610

3,500,000

Loans raised

3,500,000

-

(932,480)
9,375,698

Loans transferred
Less: Principal repaid
Closing Balance

-

256,346

(766,758)

(846,779)

9,541,420

6,808,178

905,196

1,327,211

Self Supporting
905,196
65,000
(155,560)
814,636
10,190,334

Opening balance
Loans raised
Loans transferred
Less: Principal repaid
Closing Balance
Total Liability

65,000

-

-

(256,346)

(155,815)

(165,669)

814,381

905,196

10,355,801

7,713,373

During the year Council raised loans as follows:
Loan 181 – WA Treasury Corporation

65,000

Purpose of Loan: Self-supporting
Term of Loan

5 years

Interest and other charges payable

11,119

Loan 182 – WA Treasury Corporation

3,500,000

Purpose of Loan: Ellenbrook Library Building
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Term of Loan

20 years

Interest and other charges payable

3,008,60

Budget ($)
2006/07

9 (A)

Principal
Outstanding
30/6/2006
$

Additions

$

Principal
Paid
2006/07
$

Principal
Outstanding
30/6/2007
$

1,649,639

-

171,665

1,477,974

PRINCIPAL PAID BY PROGRAM
Program Description

171,670
62,250
412,620
414,800
26,700
1,088,040

Governance
Housing

650,508

-

62,157

588,351

Recreation & Culture

1,057,004

3,565,000

247,434

4,374,570

Transport

4,260,932

-

414,682

3,846,250

95,290

-

26,635

68,655

7,713,373

3,565,000

922,573

10,355,800

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

Other Property and Services
TOTALS

In 2006/2007 a total of $155,815 of principal paid was recoupable from self supporting loans.

Budget ($)
2006/07
9 (B)

Description
Reference
INTEREST PAID BY PROGRAM
Program Description

97,750

Governance

97,622

107,791

40,620

Housing

40,571

44,421

Recreation & Culture

73,132

84,764

254,688

284,120

4,947

7,130

470,960

528,226

182,130
254,700
4,950
580,150

Transport
Other Property and Services
Interest Paid
10. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Current
Sundry Creditors
Trade Creditors
Sundry Creditors Accruals

137,897

605,616

3,600,406

3,336,089

417,159

267,913

Creditors Retention’s

90,346

90,346

FBT Accrual

39,000

54,574

Salary & Wages Accrual

285,004

286,699

Emergency Services Levy

236,891

693,811

4,806,703

5,335,048

1,831,535

1,663,112

Sub-Total - Non-current payables

1,831,535

1,663,112

Total Payables

6,638,238

6,998,160

Sub-Total - Current payables
Non-Current
Sundry Bonds and Other Deposits

11. INCOME IN ADVANCE
Advance Income
Total Income In Advance

2,946,829

2,177,065

2,946,829

2,177,065
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Budget ($)
2006/07

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

2,125,662

2,066,439

Time in Lieu Leave

104,006

133,206

Rostered Days Off

146,812

135,314

2,382,515

1,909,136

4,758,995

4,244,095

615,545

550,126

12. PROVISIONS
Current
Annual Leave

Long Service Leave
Sub-Total - Current provisions
Non-Current
Annual Leave
Long Service Leave

362,004

369,933

Sub-Total - Non-current provisions

977,549

920,059

5,736,544

5,164,154

13,395,805

10,985,315

13,395,805

10,985,315

Opening Balance

10,281,017

7,162,758

Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

(6,182,030)

(3,433,980)

665,157

445,108

6,928,945

6,107,131

11,693,089

10,281,017

33,497

14,294

Total Provisions
13. INVESTMENTS
Share in Assets of Other Entities see Note 19
Total Investments
14. RESERVES
14(A)

CASH BACKED RESERVES
SUMMARY

8,929,810
(5,913,750)
476,450
7,759,370
11,251,880

Interest earnings
Transfer from Accumulated Surplus
Closing Balance
Aged Persons Accommodation Reserve
The fund was established in 1987/88 to assist
with the future maintenance of Elvire Chalets aged
persons accommodation units. Income is from
residents in-going contributions and the net result
of Elvire Chalet operations.

15,180
940
16,120
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Opening Balance
Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

-

-

2,404

910

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

13,050

18,293

Closing Balance

48,951

33,497

Interest earnings

Budget ($)
2006/07

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

255,181

224,564

(223,315)

(39,190)

7,978

9,894

Aged Services Asset Replacement Reserve
Since 2001/02, this reserve has accumulated funds
for the replacement of vehicles and other assets used
for the provision of Aged Care and related services.
Funds are maintained by an annual transfer of unspent
HACC Non-Recurrent capital grants.
292,160
(216,410)
4,010
87,790
167,550

Opening Balance
Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus
Interest earnings
Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

6,410

59,913

46,254

255,181

Opening Balance

880,677

371,297

Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

(29,920)

(337,587)

93,243

50,582

865,578

796,115

1,809,578

880,677

Closing Balance
Midland District Drainage Development Reserve
Since 1982/83, this reserve has been used to upgrade
the stormwater drainage system in Bellevue and Midvale.
Council’s current policy requires developers to contribute
$50,000 per hectare towards this fund.

694,320
(750,000)
43,050

Interest earnings

720,000

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

707,370

Closing Balance

14(A)

CASH BACKED RESERVES
General Insurance Reserve
Since 1991/92 this reserve holds the value of
excess on general insurance claims and any
difference between the maximum premium and
standard workers compensation premium paid.
An annual transfer of the difference between the
standard premium payable and the actual premium
is charged under Council Policy.

799,860
(200,000)
48,350
529,320
1,157,530

Opening Balance
Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus
Interest earnings
Transfer from Accumulated Surplus
Closing Balance

834,712

764,319

(328,450)

(321,196)

64,334

47,629

516,374

343,960

1,086,970

834,712
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Budget ($)
2006/07

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

649,161

354,085

Gravel Pit Rehabilitation Reserve
Funds from this reserve are used for the remediation
of the existing quarry and to acquire land for future
quarries. An annual allocation is charged for gravel
which is extracted from the quarry and used on
Council’s works.
388,340

Opening Balance

(45,000)
24,080

Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus
Interest earnings

47,202

(68,304)
24,503

225,000

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

10,333

338,877

592,420

Closing Balance

706,696

649,161

1,188,915

542,464

(1,023,210)

(1,075,447)

Plant & Equipment Reserve
This reserve ﬁnances the purchase of motor vehicles,
plant and equipment associated with Council’s works.
The reserve is funded by an annual allocation of an
amount equivalent to the plant replacement rate which
is charged for plant used on all Council works.
479,500
(1,274,200)
29,730
1,445,590
680,620

Opening Balance
Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus
Interest earnings

89,536

69,719

1,517,021

1,652,179

1,772,262

1,188,915

Opening Balance

146,155

-

Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

(95,000)

(6,650)

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus
Closing Balance
Hazelmere / Guildford Drainage Reserve
Since 2005/06, this reserve has been used to upgrade
the stormwater drainage system in Hazelmere and
Guildford. Council’s current policy requires developers
to contribute $50,000 per hectare towards this fund.

66,260
(145,000)
4,110
130,000
55,370

14,251

6,083

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

Interest earnings

185,455

146,722

Closing Balance

250,861

146,155

4,062,103

3,259,304

(3,171,527)

(830,672)

233,825

192,125

1,513,621

1,441,346

2,638,022

4,062,103

Waste Management Reserve
After the amalgamation in 1992/93 of the Sanitation
Reserve and West Midland Rehabilitation Reserve,
this fund has been used to pay for operations and the
development of Council’s sanitation service.
Incoming funds are an annual allocation equivalent
to the net ‘surplus’ in the sanitation operation and a
plant replacement component.
3,865,190
(1,910,000)
239,640
2,668,150
4,862,980
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Opening Balance
Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus
Interest earnings
Transfer from Accumulated Surplus
Closing Balance

Budget ($)
2006/07

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

City Asset Replacement Reserve
Created in 2006/07 from the retention of rates
funds for the repair, maintenance and replacement
of infrastructure and capital assets.
-

Opening Balance

-

-

-

Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

-

-

25,723

-

750,000

41,070

Interest earnings
Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

750,000

-

791,070

Closing Balance

775,723

-

860,482

583,273

(1,183,624)

(342,634)

Ellenbrook Community Facilities Reserve
This fund was established in 1994/95 to provide
community facilities and services within the Ellenbrook
Estate. Income is from the Ellenbrook Joint Venture and
matching contributions from Council’s Municipal Fund.
894,840
(1,293,140)
30,000
429,520
61,220

Opening Balance
Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

60,909

41,531

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

Interest earnings

401,643

578,312

Closing Balance

139,410

860,482

Opening Balance

173,680

-

Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

(21,245)

(10,000)

Vale Community Reserve
The Vale Community Facilities and Services Reserve
fund was established in July 2005, to provide
community facilities and services within the Vale
and the region. Income is from the developers
(Multiplex Energy Pty Ltd) of Vale and matching
contributions from Council’s Municipal Fund.
185,000
-

25,752

1,862

674,000

11,470

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

Interest earnings

751,928

181,818

870,470

Closing Balance

930,115

173,680

35,275

35,275

-

-

OTHER RESTRICTED ASSETS
Midland Brick Trust
Money received for speciﬁc works which are
incomplete or still to be performed.
35,280

Opening Balance

-

Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

-

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

35,280

Closing Balance

-

-

35,275

35,275
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Budget ($)
2006/07

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

Opening Balance

127,714

194,768

-

Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

(39,690)

(67,054)

-

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

Footpath Contributions
Money received for speciﬁc works which
are incomplete or still to be performed.
130,770

-

-

88,024

127,714

Opening Balance

322,028

376,365

-

Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

(66,049)

(148,337)

-

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

30,000

94,000

285,979

322,028

26,158

31,249

130,770

Closing Balance
OTHER RESTRICTED ASSETS
Public Open Space Contributions
Money received for speciﬁc works which are
incomplete or still to be performed.

325,360

325,360

Closing Balance
Drainage Contributions
Money received for speciﬁc works which are
incomplete or still to be performed.

46,250

Opening Balance

-

Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

-

(5,091)

-

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

-

-

26,158

26,158

46,250

Closing Balance
Roadworks Contributions
Money received for speciﬁc works which are
incomplete or still to be performed.

731,500

Opening Balance

(80,000)

Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

651,500

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus
Closing Balance

640,734

411,501

-

(181,818)

399,350

411,051

1,040,084

640,734

44,545

-

-

-

Malaga Parking Contributions
Money received for speciﬁc works which are
incomplete or still to be performed
-

Opening Balance

-

Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

50,000

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

50,000

Closing Balance

(31,818)

44,545

12,727

44,545

Midland Parking Contributions
Money received for speciﬁc works which are
incomplete or still to be performed
-

Opening Balance

-

-

-

Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

-

-

30,000

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

-

-

30,000

Closing Balance

-

-
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Budget ($)
2006/07

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

Bellevue Parking Contributions
Money received for speciﬁc works which
are incomplete or still to be performed
-

Opening Balance

-

-

-

Less: Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

-

-

20,000

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

-

-

20,000

Closing Balance

-

-

11,693,089

10,281,017

Opening Balance beginning of year
Add revaluation of:

111,287,462

110,180,395

Roads, Streets and Bridges

11,251,880
14(B)

Cash Reserves at end of Financial Year
ASSET REVALUATION RESERVE

(30,051,006)

(9,516,394)

Drainage

5,562,303

8,628,918

Footpaths

1,398,472

153,715

-

1,840,830

88,197,230

111,287,462

Not later than one year

45,349

37,842

Later than one year but not later than two years

36,110

32,908

Later than two years but not later than ﬁve years

46,671

27,459

128,130

98,209

Investment in EMRC
Closing Balance end of year
15. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
Future Operating Lease rentals of Plant & Equipment
not provided for in the ﬁnancial statements and payable:-

Total operating lease commitments
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Budget ($)
2006/07

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

17,236

39,497

(17,236)

(39,497)

-

-

217,231

587,679

-

1,000

217,231

588,679

7,585

48,341

16. TOWN PLANNING SCHEME 14
This note is provided for disclosure purposes only.
None of the amounts shown below are recorded
in Council’s Financial Statements.
Income
Expenditure
Net Surplus (Deﬁcit)
Liabilities
Creditors
Creditors Retention
Total Liabilities
Assets
Bank
Scheme Debtors Net of Sale Proceeds

209,646

540,338

Total Assets

217,231

588,679

Town Planning Scheme No. 14 is a guided scheme designed to provide a coordinated approach to the planning and development of industrial land to the east of the existing
Malaga Industrial area. Stage 1 of the scheme works was completed in August, 1996 and stage 2 of the scheme works is almost complete. The Stage 2 works complete the
Scheme however there are outstanding issues to be resolved before consideration can be given to winding up the Scheme. The outstanding issues are:
1. A Court determination was in favour of the Environmental Protection Authority (EPA) in a matter involving the EPA, the City of Swan and a landowner. The landowner is
negotiating with the EPA to subdivide/ develop all or part of his property.
2. The recouping of sewer headwork costs from the Water Corporation based upon agreements.
The City of Swan has no equity in the scheme and all scheme costs are secured by a charge over land within the scheme area.

17. TRUST FUNDS
Funds over which the City has no control and
which are not included in the ﬁnancial
statements are as follows:
Unclaimed and unidentiﬁed monies
Opening balance
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30,201

30,201

Receipts

-

-

Payments

-

-

Closing balance

30,201

30,201

Total of monies held in trust

30,201

30,201

Budget ($)
2006/07

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

Swan Caring Centre

-

548,163

Wesco Site Decommissioning

-

4,640

786,300

-

18. COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES
18(A)

COMMITMENTS:
Capital expenditure commitments have
been contracted as follows.

Administration Building
Kingﬁsher Pavillion

18,040

-

Ballajura Aquatic Plantroom

3,000

-

Altone Aquatic Centre

3,000

-

Administration Centre

3,000

-

813,340

552,803

1,503,620

1,623,106

100,980

100,980

50,000

50,000

Total Contingencies

1,654,600

1,774,086

Total Commitments and Contingencies

2,467,940

2,326,889

At Valuation provided by WALGA

4,500,000

4,500,000

Less: Mortgage

(671,050)

(671,050)

3,828,950

3,828,950

53,605

53,605

Total Commitments
18(B)

CONTINGENCIES
Workers Compensation Insurance
- Burning Risk
Litigation
- Trespass claim construction of Malaga Drive
Supreme Court action
- Nielson & Loggie vs. City of Swan

19. SHARE IN ASSETS OF OTHER ENTITIES
19(A)

WESTERN AUSTRALIA LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION
This note discloses the equity the City has in WALGA
as a consequence of a contribution towards the cost
of purchasing Local Government House.
The total contribution by all councils towards the
cost of the WALGA building was $582,000 of
which the City of Swan contributed $8,000.
The City has not capitalised it’s share in WALGA.
The original contribution of $8,000 was
treated as an expense.
WALGA Building

Total Net Equity
City of Swan’s Equity
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Budget ($)
2006/07
19(B)

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

13,395,805

10,985,315

4,002,471

4,004,681

Plant & Equipment

135,338

87,321

Infrastructure

614,473

605,028

4,752,282

4,697,030

EASTERN METROPOLITAN REGIONAL
COUNCIL INVESTMENT
The City has a 33 % share in the net assets of
the Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council
(EMRC) as a member Council.
The value of this investment is based on the
City’s share of Net Assets as disclosed in the
Financial Statements of the EMRC for 2006/07.
The City’s investment in the EMRC has increased by
$2,410,490. In compliance with AASB139 the net
increase has been recognised in the Income
Statement as a non-operating activity accordingly.
City’s portion of EMRC’s net assets
Total Investment in the EMRC
20. JOINT VENTURE.
The City of Swan is a joint venturer with the
City of Bayswater in the development of the
Altone Park Centre on the corner of Danube
and Benara Roads, Beechboro.
The centre was completed in February 1995.
The City of Swan’s has a 50% interest in the
recreation component, 100% interest in the
Aquatic component and a 66.7% in the library
component of assets and liabilities of this facility.
The City of Swan is responsible for all operating
expenses incurred.
The City’s share of the assets and liabilities
committed to the joint venture are included in the
statement of ﬁnancial position under the
following classiﬁcations:
Value of City of Swan Assets in Joint Venture
Buildings

Total Share of Assets Employed in Joint Venture
Written Down Value of Assets
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Loans: Non Current Borrowings

161,093

217,632

Net Operating Expenses

681,397

445,907

Budget ($)
2006/07

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

24,273,715

18,002,326

Net Changes in Assets from Operations

26,915,946

21,552,597

Grants Capital Works Received

(3,419,909)

(2,858,775)

Depreciation

21,592,196

20,775,473

(375,131)

(504,026)

21. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
21 (A)

RECONCILIATION OF CASH
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows,
the City considers cash to include cash on hand,
at bank and investments at call. Cash at the end
of the reporting period as shown in the Statement
of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in
the Statement of Financial Position as follows:
Cash & Cash Equivalents

21 (B)

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES TO CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ARISING
FROM OPERATIONS

Proﬁt / (Loss) on disposal of assets
Proﬁt / (Loss) on investment
Non cash contributions

(2,410,490)

-

(17,467,907)

(19,547,552)

514,564

(2,163,244)

(5,292)

57,224

Changes in Assets & Liabilities during year
(Increase) / decrease in receivables
(Increase) / decrease in prepayments
(Increase) / decrease in inventory

67,650

(85,650)

Increase / (decrease) in payables

(359,922)

(139,385)

Increase / (decrease) in income in advance

769,764

610,888

Increase / (decrease) in provisions

572,389

350,228

26,393,858

18,047,778

Movement in capital and infrastructure assets

(1,411,578)

15,095,349

Write back asset revaluations

23,090,232

733,761

(17,467,907)

(19,547,552)

1,012,258

1,647,882

21,592,196

20,775,473

Expenditure on capital & infrastructure

26,815,201

18,731,913

Less: Proceeds on disposal

(1,387,389)

(2,178,908)

NET CASH IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
21 (C)

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES TO CAPITAL AND INFRASTRUCTURE
EXPENDITURE

Write back in kind contributions
Write back of disposed assets net value
Write back depreciation

1,178,500

-

Less: Capital Grants & Subsidies Received

Less: Materials Recovery Facility

(3,419,909)

(2,858,775)

NET CASH IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

23,186,403

13,694,230
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04/05

05/06

06/07

45.24%

44.65%

45.20%

2.54%

2.28%

1.81%

8.19%

7.48%

5.15%

98.02%

115.26%

137.09%

4.14%

3.94%

4.53%

14.70%

11.43%

13.46%

117.21%

181.60%

298.55%

6.47%

5.46%

6.43%

22. FINANCIAL RATIOS
a) Rate Coverage Ratio
Purpose: to assess the dependence of rate income.
Formula: Net Rate Revenue / Operating Revenue.
b) Debt Service Ratio
Purpose: To assess capacity of the City to meet total debt
commitments from rate income. Formula: Debt Service
Costs / Available Operating Revenue.
c) Outstanding Rates Ratio
Purpose: To assess the impact of uncollected rates on
liquidity and the adequacy of recovery efforts.
Formula: Rates Outstanding / Rates Collectable.
d) Current Ratio
Purpose: To assess ability to meet current commitments.
Formula: Current Assets minus Restricted Assets /
Current Liabilities minus liability associated with restricted assets.
e) Debt Ratio
Purpose: To assess capacity of the City to meet total liability commitments.
Formula: Total Liabilities / Total Assets.
f) Gross Debt to Revenue Ratio
Purpose: To identify the exposure of the City to debt,
as an indicator against total revenue. Formula: Gross debt / Total revenue.
g) Untied Cash to Trade Creditors Ratio
Purpose: To assess ability to meet immediate commitments
from readily available cash. Formula: Untied Cash / Unpaid Trade Creditors.
h) Gross Debt to Economically Realisable Assets Ratio
Purpose: To identify the exposure of the City to debt,
as an indicator of the ‘solvency’ of the City.
Formula: Gross Debts / Economically Realisable Assets.
23. COUNCILLOR FEES AND ALLOWANCES
Councillors Allowances and Reimbursement of Position Related Expenditure. Each Councillor was allocated an annual meeting fee of $7,000. The Mayor was allocated an annual
meeting fee of $14,000 plus an additional $53,000 Local Government allowance. The Deputy Mayor received $13,250 as an additional Local Government allowance. In addition,
each Councillor including the Mayor was entitled to receive reimbursement of approved expenses related to the ofﬁce of Councillor. Allowances paid and expenses reimbursed
in 2006/07 in accordance with this Section are as follows:

Budget ($)
2006/07
171,250
42,000
940
14,700
228,890
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Description
Reference
Councillor Allowances
Telephone
Child Minding
Mileage
Total Members Expenses

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

171,250

171,250

34,319

33,600

-

-

33,916

29,896

239,485

234,746

Budget ($)
2006/07

No. of
Properties

Rateable
Value $000

Actual ($)
2006/07

24. RATES INFORMATION
24(A)

RECONCILIATION OF RATES TO GENERAL PURPOSE INCOME
GROSS RENTAL VALUES

22,123,736

Min Rate cents in $

Residential & Other

9.25

28,378

241,460

22,337,489

2,935,596

Commercial

9.71

386

29,426

2,858,085

2,613,474

City Centre Commercial

10.06

247

25,223

2,536,670

6,562,814

Industrial

362,897
24,539
34,623,056

9.71

1,843

64,201

6,235,874

Brickworks

18.50

14

3,226

596,861

Noxious industries

18.50

2

118

21,839

-

-

-

177,840

30,870

363,654

34,764,658

Interim & Back Rates*
Total GRV General Rates
GRV Minimum Rates

2,763,235

Rate $

Residential & Other

545

2,253

21,580

1,227,885

Vacant

735

2,115

9,451

1,554,525

47,575

Commercial

865

58

354

50,170

46,750

City Centre Commercial

865

55

325

47,575

Industrial

865

505

3,329

436,825

-

415,200
2,700

Industrial Storage Units

300

8

6

2,400

-

Brickworks

865

1

5

865

-

Interim & Back Rates*

-

-

-

17,072

4,995

35,050

3,337,317

3,275,460

Total GRV Minimum Rates
UNIMPROVED VALUES Min

Rate cents in $

2,067,557

General Rural

0.392

1,334

568,625

2,229,010

1,997,067

Special Areas

0.395

1,850

497,038

1,963,300

28,358

Large Scale Vineyards

0.550

3

5,156

28,358

71,703

Vineyards & Commercial

0.481

16

9,410

45,262

35,448

Quarries

0.550

30

30,610

168,355

693,926

Landscape

0.371

544

181,149

672,063

593,070

Swan Valley Rural

0.456

346

141,372

644,654

629,451

Urban Farmland

0.351

248

157,765

553,755

451,814

Swan Valley Farmland

0.327

295

125,212

409,443

6,568,394

Interim Rates & Adjustments*

-

Total UV Minimum Rates
UV Minimum Rates

-

-

(121,354)

4,666

1,716,337

6,592,846
82,080

Rate $

34,200

General Rural

570

144

13,873

8,550

Special Areas

570

14

1,258

7,980

2,280

Mining Tenements

570

3

36

1,710

2,850

Landscape 570

5

481

2,850

Swan Valley Rural

570

17

1,650

9,690

2,200

Urban Farmland

550

2

297

1,100

3,850

Swan Valley Farmland

550

7

855

3,850

-

-

-

(1,975)

192

18,450

107,285

10,260

64,190
44,531,100

Interim & Back Rates
Total Minimum Rates - UV
TOTAL RATES LEVIED

44,802,106

* Budget provisions for interim and back rates are included within individual budget allocations.
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CITY OF SWAN FINANCIALS 2006 – 2007
Budget ($)
2006/07

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

44,802,106

41,043,249

-

(1,171,699)

230,970

240,155

RECONCILING RATES TO GENERAL PURPOSE INCOME
44,531,100
-

TOTAL RATES LEVIED
Less: Discount Allowed

130,000

Plus Administration Fee

560,000

Plus Interest Charges

412,314

257,820

Plus Ex Gratia Rates

161,562

152,325

45,221,100

Less: Rates Written-Off
TOTAL MADE UP FROM RATES

(11,146)

(15,959)

45,595,806

40,505,891

The amount made up from rates is reconciled
to the General Purpose Income shown in the
Income Statement
General Purpose Grant
1,607,982

General (Untied) Grant

1,580,487

1,362,555

1,615,201

General (Untied) Road Grant

1,690,303

1,414,501

Other General Purpose Income
1,654,130
407,270
50,505,683
24(A)

Pensioners’ Deferred rates interest grant
Interest On Investments
Miscellaneous
TOTAL GENERAL PURPOSE INCOME

35,833

-

2,441,002

1,596,313

426,801

420,959

51,770,232

45,300,219

70,918

70,104

2,700

2,205

RATING INFORMATION
RATES CONCESSIONS
An urban farmland concession was on offer to
all properties conducting farmland activities
consistent with the relevant provisions of Council policy.
The concession is an incentive for ratepayers to
maintain the district’s rural character.

70,100

Urban farmland concession
A rating concession of 67% of the minimum
rate for industrial properties was provided to
strata titled storage units, which were appropriately
zoned and used. The concession recognises the
majority of the strata units occupy small areas;
and generate little and infrequent use of Council’s
facilities and services.

5,274

Strata titled unit concession

A rating concession of 100% applied to all
privately leased and licensed agreements at
Whiteman Park; for which the City provides
no services. The Valuer General has not provided
valuations and the Water Corporation does not rate
these properties. 20 of the 26 agreements are with
exempt community based groups.
The other properties are small in scale and
related to the tourist trade which enhances the attraction of the park.
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Budget ($)
2006/07

Description
Reference

Actual ($)
2006/07

Actual ($)
2005/06

11,146

15,959

Interest rate for late payment of rates

9%

9%

Interest on rate instalments

5%

5%

263,256

257,820

28 Aug 06

5 Sep 05

RATES WRITE OFFS
By council delegation or resolution
the following was written of.
Rates written off
INTEREST CHARGES
During the year Council charged interest
on payment of rates as follows:

160,000

Amount levied as interest charges
RATE INSTALMENTS
A range of formal rate instalments were
offered to ratepayer as follows:
Early Payment to qualify for prize draw
Four instalments
1st payment due

28 Aug 06

5 Sep 05

2nd payment due

30 Oct 06

7 Nov 05

3rd payment due

28 Dec 06

5 Jan 06

4th payment due

28 Feb 07

6 Mar 06

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
25 (A) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Details of signiﬁcant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the
basis on which revenues and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of ﬁnancial asset and ﬁnancial liability are disclosed in
Note 1 to the accounts.
25 (B) CREDIT RATE RISK
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterpart will default on its contractual obligations resulting in ﬁnancial loss to the Council.
The Council has adopted the policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufﬁcient collateral or other security
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of ﬁnancial loss from defaults. The Council measures credit risk on a fair value basis.
The Council does not have any signiﬁcant credit risk exposure to any single counterpart or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics.
25 (C) NET FAIR VALUE
Since June 30 2007, volatility in the credit market has had an impact, although not material in terms of total investments, on the Net
Fair Value of one $500,000 investment. Federation is a mortgage backed security that has been directly affected by the United States
sub prime mortgage crisis and Grange Securities have estimated the net fair value of the Federation note at 31 August 2007 is $172,310
or a 65.5% devaluation. Federation is due to mature in 2014.
25 (D) INTEREST RATE RISK
The following two tables details this Council’s exposure to interest rate risk as at the reporting date and the previous reporting date.
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CITY OF SWAN FINANCIALS 2006 – 2007
Period Ending
30th June 2007

Average
Int. Rate
%

Upto
1 Year
$

Cash At Bank

1 to 4.25

191,696

TPS 14 Bank Account

1 to 4.25

7,586

1 to
5 Years
$

Over
5 Years
$

Non Int.
Bearing
$

Total
$

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash
191,696
7,586

Petty Cash/Cash Advances
Sub-Total Cash at Bank

199,282

17,629

17,629

17,629

216,911

Investments
CTB 24 Hour Call

6.10

3,748,034

3,748,034

Macquarie Cash Mgt Trust

5.32

280,827

280,827

Bank of Adelaide

6.86

1,503,933

1,503,933

Beeches

7.61

500,000

500,000

Bendigo BBB

6.86

500,000

500,000

Blaxland

7.97

1,000,000

1,000,000

Blue Gum

7.35

500,495

500,495

Colonial Finance Ltd A+

6.90

500,000

500,000

Coolangatta

7.76

500,000

500,000

Deutsche Bank

8.25

1,000,000

1,000,000

Endeavour AAA

7.67

500,000

500,000

Esperance

7.56

500,000

500,000

Federation

7.38

500,000

500,000

Glenelg AA-

7.67

1,000,000

1,000,000

HSBC Bank

6.56

2,804,286

2,804,286

Henley

7.30

150,000

150,000

Kakadu

7.46

550,000

550,000

Kalgoorlie

7.65

500,000

500,000

Lawson

7.71

502,778

502,778

Lehman Brothers Co

6.46

300,000

300,000

Macquarie Bank Ltd

6.55

753,454

753,454

Merimbula

7.56

500,000

500,000

Oasis – Portfolio Note CBA

8.26

1,000,000

1,000,000

Parkes Class 1A

7.46

500,000

500,000

Parkes 11A

8.46

500,000

500,000

Rothschild & Son

6.87

500,000

500,000

Royal Bank of Scotland

6.64

500,000

500,000

Scarborough AA

7.85

1,000,000

1,000,000

Torquay

7.61

500,000

500,000

Westpac Banking Corp

6.42

501,784

501,784

Westpac FRN

6.63

500,000

500,000

TPS 14

7.20

216,231

216,231

Sub-Total
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24,311,821

-

-

-

24,311,821

Period Ending
30th June 2007

Average
Int. Rate
%

Upto
1 Year
$

1 to
5 Years
$

Over
5 Years
$

Non Int.
Bearing
$

Total
$

Receivables
TPS 14 Debtors

7.20

209,646

Rates Debtors

5.00

2,078,224

Rates Deferred Debtors

5.64

790,785

209,646
2,078,224
790,785

Other Receivables
Sub-Total
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS

5,841,843

5,841,843

8,869,009

209,646

-

5,841,843

8,920,498

27,380,112

209,646

-

5,859,472

33,449,230

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trust Creditors

30,201

30,201

Trade Creditors

4,806,703

4,806,703

Employee Entitlements

5,736,544

5,736,544

Loans
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

6.46

1,035,040

4,238,592

5,082,169

-

10,355,801

1,035,040

4,238,592

5,082,169

10,573,448

20,929,250
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CITY OF SWAN FINANCIALS 2006 – 2007
Period Ending
30th June 2007

Average
Int. Rate
%

Upto
1 Year
$

Cash At Bank

1 to 4.25

416,241

TPS 14 Bank Account

1 to 4.25

48,341

1 to
5 Years
$

Over
5 Years
$

Non Int.
Bearing
$

Total
$

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash
416,241
48,341

Petty Cash/Cash Advances
Sub-Total Cash at Bank

464,582

30,001

30,001

30,001

494,583

Investments
Adelaide Bank BB

6.60

Alliance Capital

5.30

619,044

619,044

ANZ

5.83

2,594,969

2,594,969

ANZ F.R Sub Debt A-

6.12

1,000,859

1,000,859

Bank of Qld AA

6.72

504,124

504,124

BankWest A+

5.78

502,079

502,079

Bendigo BBB

6.27

500,000

500,000

CFS - Global Corporate

6.20

500,000

500,000

CTB 24 hr call

5.60

1,964,404

1,964,404

Colonial Finance Ltd A+

6.08

500,310

500,310

Colonial First State

5.85

833,154

833,154

Endeavour AAA

7.18

1,000,000

1,000,000

F.R.CDO - Beeches

6.80

500,000

500,000

F.R.CDO - Newport AAA

6.60

500,000

500,000

F.R.CDO - Esperance

6.69

500,000

500,000

F.R.CDO - Blue Gum

6.94

500,891

500,891

Glenelg

7.21

1,000,000

1,000,000

Nexus AA+

6.80

501,879

501,879

Quartz AA

7.10

500,000

500,000

Rothschild & Son

6.45

500,000

500,000

Scarborough AA

7.11

1,000,000

1,000,000

Westpac Bank

5.88

502,379

502,379

Westpac FRN

6.14

500,000

500,000

TPS 14

7.20

Sub-Total

502,158

502,158

577,679

577,679

18,103,929

-

7.20

540,338

-

-

18,103,929

Receivables
TPS 14 Debtors
Rates Debtors

9.00

2,778,721

Rates Deferred Debtors

5.64

743,325

540,338
2,778,721
743,325

Other Receivables
Sub-Total
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS
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4,686,153

4,686,153

3,522,046

540,338

-

4,686,153

8,748,537

22,090,557

540,338

-

4,716,154

27,347,049

Period Ending
30th June 2007

Average
Int. Rate
%

Upto
1 Year
$

1 to
5 Years
$

Over
5 Years
$

Non Int.
Bearing
$

Total

Trust Creditors

30,201

30,201

Trade Creditors

5,335,048

5,335,048

$

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Employee Entitlements
Loans

6.46

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

5,164,154

5,164,154

899,238

4,260,592

2,553,543

-

7,713,373

899,238

4,260,592

2,553,543

10,529,403

18,242,776

26. SUPERANNUATION
The City of Swan complies with the minimum obligations under federal law and contributes in respect of its employees to the WA Local
Government Superannuation Plan.
The Council contributes in respect of certain of its employees to an accumulated beneﬁt superannuation fund established in respect
of all Municipalities in the state. In accordance with statutory requirements, the Council contributes to the WA Local Government
Superannuation Plan amounts nominated by the Council. As such, assets are accumulated in the plan to meet members beneﬁts as they
accrue. For this reason no liability of the Council has been recognised as at the reporting date in respect of superannuation beneﬁts for
its employees.
Actual
2006/07

Actual
2005/06

$2,580,034

$2,410,880

$22,360

$22,000

693

668

3

-

Employees entitled to annual an salary of $110,000 to $119,999

-

4

Employees entitled to annual an salary of $120,000 to $129,999

4

-

Superannuation Contributions Paid
27. REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS
Auditing the ﬁnancial report
28. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Total as at balance date
29. EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION
Shown below in bands of $10,000, is the number of
employees the City entitled to an annual salary of
$100, 000 or more. Based on guidance from the DLGRD,
‘annual salary’ only includes the cash component
of any remuneration.
Annual salary entitlements
Employees entitled to annual an salary of $100,000 to $109,999

Employees entitled to annual an salary of $170,000 to $179,999

1

1

TOTAL

8

5

30. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Since June 30 2007, signiﬁcant volatility of credit
market has occurred, particularly in the United States
sub prime mortgage market, implications for the City’s
Investment portfolio are disclosed under note 25 (c).
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